
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 

AGENDA 
 

Winnebago County Courthouse 
400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 

County Board Room, 8th Floor and 
(In Person Meeting with Zoom Option) 

 
Thursday, April 22, 2021 

6:00 p.m.  
 

1. Call to Order  .............................................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance ...................................... Board Member Aaron Booker 
 
3. Agenda Announcements ............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ............................................................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Awards – Presented to Deputies Wes Ganz and Ryan Fish 
B. Capital Improvement Plan Presentation by David J. Rickert, CFO 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None  
E. Proclamation – National Public Safety Telecommunicators Week 

 
6. Approval of Minutes ................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of March 25, 2021 minutes 
B. Layover of April 8, 2021 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda .......................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report 
B. Auditor’s Report – Approval of Bills 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30 day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
A. Community Action Agency Board 

1. Dorothy Redd (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, April 2021 – April 2022 
B. North Park Public Water District Board – Laid Over from March 11, 2021 Meeting    

1. Brett Hruby (New Appointment), Roscoe, Illinois, February 2021 – February 2026 
C. Harlem-Roscoe Fire District Board – Laid Over from March 11, 2021 Meeting 

1. Al Bach Sr. (Reappointment), Roscoe, Illinois, April 30, 2021 – April 30, 2024 
D. 911 Emergency Telephone System Board 



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

 1.   Don Carlson (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, April 2019 – April 2022 
E. Board of Review 
 1.   Jay Dowthard (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, May 2021 – May 2023 
 2.   Pamela Cunningham (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, May 2021 – May 2023 

 
9. Reports of Standing Committees .................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee .................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Ordinance Providing for the Creation of a Capital Improvement Plan Budget to be Laid 

Over 
3. Resolution Supporting SB1721 — Proposed Amendments to the Property Tax Code (35 

ILCS 200/21-90; 35 ILCS 200/21-215; 35 ILCS 200/21-355) Counties Code (55 ILCS 5/5-
1121) and Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-31-1) Laid Over from April 8, 2021 
Meeting 

4. Resolution Opposing SB2278 — Proposed Amendment to State Statute 55 ILCS 5/5-
1006.5 (Special County Retailers’ Occupation Tax for Public Safety, Public Facilities, 
Mental Health, Substance Abuse, or Transportation) Laid Over from April 8, 2021 
Meeting 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Z-02-21 A map amendment to rezone +/- 24.66 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the CG, General Commercial District for the property that is commonly 
known as the northeast corner of Rote and N. Lyford Roads in Rockford Township, 
District 8 to be laid over. 

2. A Resolution calling for the Governor and General Assembly to protect Local Control of 
Zoning and Land Use with regard to Commercial Wind Power Energy Facilities (Wind 
Farms), Countywide. 

3. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ................................... Jas Bilich, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing The Chairman Of The County Board To Execute A 

Redevelopment Agreement By And Between The County Of Winnebago, Illinois And 
Venture One Development, LLC For Project Sawgrass 
 

D. Operations & Administrative Committee ............... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Vision Service Plan 

(VSP) for Voluntary Vision Insurance 
3. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an Agreement with Zero Card for a 

Voluntary/Supplemental Health Benefit 
4. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an Agreement with Aura Benefits Program for 

a Voluntary Identity Guard Plan 
5. Resolution for Approval of Winnebago County Board Chairman Proposed Vehicle Use 
6. Resolution to Approve Telecommunication Service Contract 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

 
E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. (21-008) Resolution Authorizing the Award of a Bid for an Expansion Joint Repair on 

Meridian Road Bridge Over the Pecatonica River - (Section: 21-00681-00-BR) 
Cost:  $ 22,000      C.B. District:  2 

3. (21-009) Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Local Public Agency Agreement with 
Willett Hofmann & Associates Inc. and the Appropriation of the Local Share of Funds 
to Provide Construction Engineering Services for the Rehabilitation of Alpine Road 
Bridge Over Forest Hills Road - (Section 16-00620-00-BR) 
Cost:  $ 320,758.00     C.B. District:  17 & 20 

4. (21-010) Resolution Rescinding Resolution # 21-005 (previously awarded bids) and 
Awarding Bids for Mowing and Vegetation Control 
Cost:   $ 14,625 (Mowing - 2021 season)   C.B. District:  County Wide 
        $ 14,625 (Mowing - 2022 season) 
      $ 11,850 (Weed Control – 2021 season) 
      $ 11,850 (Weed Control – 2022 season) 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee…………………………….Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report      

 
10. Unfinished Business…………………………….…………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
11. New Business…………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
12. Announcements & Communications ................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 

A. Correspondence (see packet)  
 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
Next Meeting:  Thursday, May 13, 2021 



 

  
Awards,  

Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 

 
 













 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 























 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 









 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: April 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Community Action Agency 
 
Community Services Block Grant Program (CSBG): Community Action Agencies across the State 
provide a variety of CSBG services, including but not limited to, assistance with Rental/Mortgage, 
Food, Water/Sewer Payment, Employment Training/Placement, Financial Management, and 
Temporary Shelter. Each agency delivers locally-designed programs and services based on the needs 
of its community. 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Dorothy Redd of Rockford, Illinois, to serve a one-year term from April 2021-April 2022 on the 
Community Action Agency Board. 
 

About the Community Action Agency 
Location:  612 N. Church St., Rockford, IL 61104 
Service Description:  The Community Action Board functions in an advisory and oversight 

capacity representing the community it serves.  
 
The members assist in the overall planning and setting of priorities, 
reviewing program strategies and budgets, and ensuring compliance with 
funding sources.  
 
The fifteen-member Board is composed of community representatives from 
the low income, public officials, and private sectors. 
 
www.communityactionboonewinn.org 

Board Composition:  The fifteen-member Board is composed of community representatives from 
the low income, public officials, and private sectors 

Origin of Entity:  

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

None 

Compensation: None 

 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: March 8, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph Chiarelli recommends the following person(s) to 
serve as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Brett Hruby of Roscoe, Illinois to serve filling an unexpired term from February 2021 to 
February 2026 on the North Park Water District Board. 
 
 

About the North Park Water District 
Location:  1350 Turret Drive, Machesney Park, IL 
Service Description:  Provide water to a population of 33,000 and serves over 12,000 households 

and businesses in the Machesney Park, Roscoe, and Loves Park area. 

Board Composition:  Three trustees appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board.  No more than two of the Board 
Members may be affiliated with the same political party. 

Origin of Entity: Public Corporation chartered on May 9, 1955 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Revenue from charges to service for water 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

None Known 

Compensation: $1,200 per year 

 





1

Karen Elyea

From: Joseph Chiarelli
Sent: Tuesday, February 2, 2021 8:44 AM
To: Karen Elyea
Subject: FW: North Park Water Board of Trustees Appointment - Brett Hruby
Attachments: January 2021 Resume - Hruby.pdf

 
 
From: Kelly Saunders <KSaunders@northparkwater.org>  
Sent: Friday, January 29, 2021 12:52 PM 
To: Joseph Chiarelli <Joe@WinCoIL.us> 
Subject: North Park Water Board of Trustees Appointment - Brett Hruby 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking 
links, especially from unknown senders. 

  
Dear Chairman Chiarelli,  
  
I had spoken with you a few weeks back regarding a vacancy on our Board due to the unexpected passing of one of our 
Trustees in December. I am very pleased to inform you that our Board has identified an exceptional candidate for your 
consideration and that of the County Board. The candidates name is Brett Hruby, and he lives and works within our 
service area. He recently attended a North Park Water meeting as a guest, and is very interested in becoming a member 
of our Board. He has had community service experience in the past as the President of the Genoa Township Park Board 
and is familiar with the functions and processes of Board appointment. Additionally, Mr. Hruby works at the Kinnikinnick 
CCSD #31 where he has been the Chief School Business Official for the last 20 years. With extensive knowledge in public 
finance and policy we believe his experience and expertise will be a great asset to our Board of Trustees. I’ve attached 
his resume for your reference, which includes his contact information.  
  
Please let me know if you need any additional information or if you have any questions or concerns.  
  
Thanks so much,   
  
Kelly Saunders 
North Park Public Water District|Chief Executive Officer 
Office: 779.210.3080| ksaunders@northparkwater.org 
  



BRETT A. HRUBY 
12151 Love Rd 

Roscoe, Illinois 61073 
(815) 509-7128 

 
EDUCATION 
Master of Science      Northern Illinois University - Educational Administration (December 2001) 
Bachelor of Science   Northern Illinois University - Geography - Plant & Soil emphasis (May 1987) 

ENDORSEMENTS 
Type 75 - School Business Management (December 2001) 

EXPERIENCE 
Chief School Business Official (November 2001-Present) Kinnikinnick CCSD #131 (Roscoe, IL) 
 - Oversight and management of all aspects of school district finances in 
  conjunction with the District Superintendent 

School Business Management Internship (2001) Genoa-Kingston CUSD #424 (Genoa, IL) 
- enrollment and staffing projections 
- referendum planning and passage 
- tax rates, EAV, and homeowner impact 
- investment, cash flow, and bonding 
- budget and levy cycles 

Computer Technician (1998-2001) Genoa-Kingston CUSD #424 (Genoa, IL) 
- troubleshoot, repair, and maintain district computing hardware 
- test, evaluate, and install software programs 
- LAN setup and maintenance 
- assist in district wireless networking 

Head of Maintenance (1990-2001) Genoa-Kingston High School (Genoa, IL) 
- responsible for all areas of building and grounds maintenance including  

electrical, plumbing, remodeling, and general upkeep 
 - assist in management of district life safety and construction projects 

- supervision of permanent and seasonal staff members in daily custodial tasks and 
summer rehab of district buildings for the upcoming school year 

Graduate Teaching Assistant (1987-1989) Northern Illinois University    
Department of Geography (DeKalb, IL) 
- instruction and evaluation of undergraduate and graduate students in 

environmental science and statistical research coursework 
- development of curriculum for soil science laboratory 
- independent research in plant/soil relationships 

Maintenance Assistant (1978-1990) Genoa-Kingston CUSD #424 (Genoa, IL) 
- minor electrical and plumbing repair  
- daily building upkeep 

COMMUNITY SERVICE 
President, Genoa Township Park Board (1995-1997) 
Genoa-Kingston High School Student Council Assistant (1995-2001) 
Genoa-Kingston Athletic and Music Booster Club Assistant (1978-2001) 

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIP 
Illinois Association of School Business Officials 
The Association of School Business Officials International 

References available upon request 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: March 11, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Frank Haney 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Frank Haney recommends the following person(s) to serve 
as County appointee. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Al Bach of Roscoe, Illinois, to serve a 3-year term from April 2021-April 2024 on the Harlem-
Roscoe Fire Protection District Board. 
 

About the Harlem-Roscoe Fire Protection District 
Location:  10544 Main Street 
Service Description:  Provide fire emergency, medical and other life safety services to Machesney 

Park, Village of Roscoe and unincorporated area 

Board Composition:  Three trustees, appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board 

Origin of Entity: Fire Protection District AT (70 ILCS 705/1) 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

District levies and annual property tax, charges for services and replacement 
tax 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

If applicable 

Compensation: None 

 



2/24/21 
 
Good morning, 
 
I am responding as a request for my interest in continuing as a Trustee of the Harlem Roscoe Fire 
District. I love the whole package of what is involved with being a Trustee. From the administration 
duties to the financial responsibilities to the involvement with the whole Team. I would greatly 
appreciate being reappointed to my position as trustee. 
Looking forward to talking to the Chairman about the process. 
 
Thank You, 
  
Al Bach 

 
 
 
 



                                      
                                      
                                     HARLEM-ROSCOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
                                  
                                        P.O. BOX 450 * ROSCOE, ILLINOIS  61073-0450  
                                                   Administration # (815) 623-7867    Fax # (815) 623-8831 

 

 
 

  
 
Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
404 Elm Street 
Room 533 
Rockford IL 61101 
 
 
Ref: Fire District Appointment 
 
 
Mr. Chairman, 
 
Mr. Al Bach’s appointment to our Fire District Board is due to expire on April 30, 2020. Mr. Bach has 
been a positive proactive trustee for the district over the past 9 years and has expressed a strong interest 
to be reappointed. Over these past 9 years, Mr. Bach has been active, and involved with obtaining 
continuing education for himself to serve the district in the trustee position even better. He continues to 
show a commitment with continuous support and dedication for us to achieve our goals and see that we 
hold true to our mission and vision statements. His background in business is also an indication of his 
approach to this district. He is an open minded individual with the interest of our district both financially 
and the service we provide in the forefront of his mind. Our board has a history of transparency, which I 
strongly believe is the foundation for our success. This is evident with the support we receive from the 
members of the communities we serve.  I would appreciate your support and recommendation to 
reappoint him to another three-year term to our fireboard so that we may continue to build upon our 
goals and commitment to the district.  An individual who shows this type of support and commitment to 
the position of trustee, allows us to be who we are and remain a proactive district in emergency services. 
I thank you for your consideration and quick attention to my request. I ask should you have any 
questions please don’t hesitate to call me, and I look forward to working with you in the near- and long-
term future. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Donald Shoevlin, 
Fire Chief 
Harlem-Roscoe Fire Protection District 
 

“A Progressive Fire Department providing a Professional level of service.” 

 
Donald Shoevlin 

Fire Chief 
 

 

 





 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: April 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: 911 ETS Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Don Carlson of Rockford, Illinois, to serve a 3-year term from April 2021-April 2024 on the 911 
Emergency Telephone System Board. 
 

About the 911 Emergency Telephone System Board 
Location:  204 S. First Street, Rockford, IL 61104 
Service Description:  Planning a 9-1-1 System: coordinating and supervising the implementation 

and maintenance of the system, including the establishment of equipment 
specifications and coding systems.  Authorizing disbursement from the ETS 
Fund. 

Board Composition:  Eleven (11) members. Winnebago Co. Sheriff, Chiefs of Police of Rockford, 
Loves Park & South Beloit, Rep. from Machesney Park Emergency Services 
Dept., Fire Chief of Rockford & Rural, four (4) at large  

Origin of Entity: Established by referendum in 1990 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Wireline and wireless telephone surcharge imposed on subscribers bills 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

If applicable 

Compensation: None 

 





 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: April 22, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person(s) to 
serve as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Jay Dowthard and Pamela Cunningham of Rockford, Illinois, to serve 2-year terms from May 
2021 to May 2023 on the Board of Review. 
 

About the Board of Review 
Location:  404 Elm Street 
Service Description:  Provides property owners a venue to resolve assessed value complaints.  

Serves as the final local administrative review for assessment complaints. 

Board Composition:  Three trustees, appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board.  No more than two of the Board 
Members may be affiliated with the same political party. 

Origin of Entity: Property Tax Code 35 ILCS 200 Section 6 and Section 16 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

Funded through the General Fund which includes property tax revenue. 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

None known 

Compensation: Each Board member receives $27,000 per year.  The Chairman receives 
$30,000 per year.  They are paid bi-weekly. 

 









March 15, 2021 
 
Good morning Chairman Chiarelli! 
 
I am writing to express my interest in serving on the Winnebago County Board of 
Review.  I was informed that I passed the exam given last week in Springfield.  I 
actually was interested & took the exam going back to 2017, but no openings came up 
for a Republican member during that time.   
 
I have been licensed in real estate since 2004, so I have been through the good, the 
bad, the really bad, and now a better real estate market.  This gives me a broad basis 
with which to review market values and fairly assess property values.  I highly value 
the Realtor Code of Ethics when working with my clients, and would also do so as a 
member of the Board of Review.   
 
I look forward to the opportunity to discuss this further with you.  You may contact 
me via any of the methods below. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Pamela Cunningham 
Broker, Gambino Realtors 
815-289-6323 
Certified Negotiation Expert (CNE) 
Pricing Strategies Advisor (PSA) 
Certified Mobility Specialist for Relocations (CMS) 
Short Sale & Foreclosure Certified (SFR) 
Internet Marketing, ePRO Certified 
 
Pam@PamCunninghamRealtor.com 
PCunningham@GoGambino.com 
 
www.PamCunninghamRealtor.com 
 

 
 
 
 

mailto:Pam@PamCunninghamRealtor.com
mailto:PCunningham@GoGambino.com
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.pamcunninghamrealtor.com%2f&c=E,1,13X878bKdLhfcSOF8n7GAa52Zc0d2rSlsr0bFHTmipoMGJY-bjprjZ1RhWNs0TTV6HqjOWI9Xr1sTfq6Vm5w3ZxAqybEZfNEkGuJNPzAYLQS1bOX9wSCmebWog,,&typo=1




 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  April 15, 2021 
Resolution Title:   An ordinance providing for the creation of a Capital Improvement       

Plan budget 
 
County Code:       Not Applicable  
   
Board Meeting Date:    April 22nd, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $3 Million 
If not, explain funding source:   Host Fees 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   82200               Budget Impact:   $3 Million 

 
Background Information: An ordinance providing for the creation of a Capital Improvement   

Plan Budget. The capital improvement plan will be funded using 
money from the Host Fee reserves. It is critical that Winnebago 
County begins to address it’s significant present and future capital 
needs, to avoid cost repairs and possible litigation. This budget 
amendment will be the first step in addressing the county’s capital 
improvement plans. 

 
Recommendation:   Staff Concurs 
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:       
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2021 Fiscal Year Finance: April 15, 2021 
 Lay Over: April 22, 2021 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: May 13, 2021 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2021 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, Winnebago County has developed a Capital Improvement Plan to address 
the count’s future capital needs. The first part of this plan is to be paid for with funds from the 
Host fee. 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 at its September 24, 2020 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2021-008 Capital Improvement Plan. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 



2 
 

   
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



4/9/2021
Capital Projects Dave Rickert

0743 & 0116

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

82200 41999 Contingency Budget $0 $0 $0 $311,271 $311,271
82200 42115 Non-Capital Office Equipment $0 $0 $0 $222,107 $222,107
82200 46310 Land Improvements $0 $0 $0 $570,000 $570,000
82200 46320 Building Improvements $0 $0 $0 $497,000 $497,000
82200 46410 Automobiles $0 $0 $0 $117,810 $117,810
82200 46430 Machinery & Equipment $0 $0 $0 $1,080,000 $1,080,000
82200 46500 Office Furniture & Equipment $0 $0 $0 $25,000 $25,000
82200 46586 Data Processing Equipment $0 $0 $0 $130,812 $130,812
82200 46330 Roadway $0 $0 $0 $46,000 $46,000
82200 39110 Transfer From Other Funds $0 $0 $0 ($3,000,000) ($3,000,000)

Revenue
41700 49110 Transfer to Other Funds $1,000,000 $0 $1,000,000 $3,000,000 $3,000,000

$3,000,000
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Fund Balance

2021
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2021 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

$3,000,000 

Winnebago County has developed a Capital Improvement Plan to address the county's future capital needs. The first part of this 
plan is to be paid for with funds from the Host Fee.

2021-008

82200 & 41700DEPT. BUDGET NO.



Sponsored by:  Paul Arena     County Board Meeting: April 8, 2021 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2021 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING SB1721 — PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE PROPERTY 
TAX CODE (35 ILCS 200/21-90; 35 ILCS 200/21-215; 35 ILCS 200/21-355)  

ILLINOIS COUNTIES CODE (55 ILCS 5/5-1121) AND  
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL CODE (65 ILCS 5/11-31-1) 

 
 

WHEREAS, on February 26, 2021, Illinois State Senator Steve Stadelman has sponsored a 
new bill, SB1721, which proposes amendments to the Property Tax Code (35 ILCS 200/21-90; 35 
ILCS 200/21-215; 35 ILCS 200/21-355), Illinois Counties Code (55 ILCS 5/5-1121) and Illinois 
Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-31-1); and  

 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to the Property Tax Code (35 ILCS 200/21-90; 35 

ILCS 200/21-215; 35 ILCS 200/21-355) relate to the provisions for delinquent property and tax sales, 
which would include the Winnebago County Trustee program, and a summary of the amendments 
are as follows: 

• Makes it discretionary and not mandatory for the County to take steps necessary 
to acquire title to the property and adds new managerial and operational rights; 

• Provides costs to be distributed to taxing districts, including operation and 
maintenance costs and all costs associated with county staff and overhead used to 
perform the duties of the trustee;  

• Reduces the maximum penalty bids for the annual tax sale from 18% to 12%; 
• For redemption of property, it limits the assessments of penalties from every 6 

months to 12 months (and conforms other timeframes); and  
 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to the Illinois Counties Code (55 ILCS 5/5-1121) -
Demolition, repair and enclosure, modifies the requirements to have a circuit court declare property 
abandoned, and a summary of the amendments are as follows: 

• To declare a property abandoned, the property’s condition must impair public 
health, safety, or welfare for reasons specified in the petition; 

• Requiring the posting of a notice on the property prior to any declaration of 
abandonment; 

• The owner of record or person having an interest in the property shall make a 
request to demolish the property or put it in safe condition, rather than repair it 

• The may petition the court to issue a judicial deed for the property to the county 
or another governmental body designed by the county in the petition; and 
 

WHEREAS, similar amendments from the Illinois Counties Code are proposed to the 
Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-31-1) - Demolition, repair, enclosure, or remediation, for 



abandoned property; and 
 
WHEREAS, for years the County of Winnebago, Illinois has had a successful Trustee 

program to conduct tax sales of delinquent or forfeited properties pursuant to the provisions of the 
Property Tax Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois has also utilized the remedy under the 

Illinois Counties Code by filing petitions with the 17th Judicial Circuit Court to have properties 
declared abandoned and remove blight; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Property Tax Code and the Illinois Counties Code are both utilized by the 

County of Winnebago to address issues with blighted properties located within the county and 
improve the health, safety and welfare of its citizens.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago that SB1721 would benefit Winnebago County, Illinois, its citizens and support its 
efforts in addressing tax delinquent, forfeited and blighted properties more efficiently. Therefore, the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois supports SB1721. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 
      Respectfully submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado, Chairman                                Jaime Salgado, Chairman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Steve Schultz          Steve Schultz 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
John Butitta           John Butitta 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Paul Arena      Paul Arena 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman       Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby          Jean Crosby  
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Keith McDonald     Keith McDonald 
 

 



The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County  
of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

 
 

 
 



Sponsored by:  Paul Arena  County Board Meeting: April 8, 2021 
 
 

RESOLUTION  
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2021 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 

 
RESOLUTION OPPOSING SB2278 — PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO STATE STATUTE 
55 ILCS 5/5-1006.5 (SPECIAL COUNTY RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX FOR PUBLIC 

SAFETY, PUBLIC FACILITIES, MENTAL HEALTH, SUBSTANCE ABUSE,  
OR TRANSPORTATION) 

 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 55 ILCS 5/5-1006.5 (Special County Retailers’ Occupation Tax for 
Public Safety, Public Facilities, Mental Health, Substance Abuse, or Transportation), the county 
board of any county may impose a tax upon all persons engaged in the business of selling tangible 
personal property, other than personal property titled or registered with an agency of this State’s 
government, at retail in the county on the gross receipts from the sales made in the course of their 
business to provide revenue to be used for public safety, public facility, mental health, substance 
abuse, or transportation purposes; and  
 

WHEREAS, currently the County of Winnebago imposes such a tax for public safety and 
another tax for mental health; and 

 
WHEREAS, the public safety sales tax was imposed by the County of Winnebago 

approximately 18 years ago and has been managed since that time without a separate board; and 
  
WHEREAS, the mental health sales tax was imposed by the County of Winnebago by the 

approval and adoption of an ordinance on May 14, 2020, with an effective date of July 1, 2020.  A 7-
member board has been established to advise the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
(County Board) on the use of funds received from the tax; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago is the first county in Illinois to impose a tax to be 

used for mental health and has yet to begin the expenditure of funds received from the tax; and  
 
WHEREAS, on February 26, 2021, Illinois State Senator Steve Stadelman has sponsored a 

new bill, SB2278, which proposes an amendment to 55 ILCS 5/5/-1006.5 (g); and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment provides as follows: “any county authorized to levy a 
tax under this Section may establish a 7-member board, which shall oversee the use of funds received 
from the tax under this Section. Such board shall be appointed by the chairman of the county board 
or chief executive officer of the county with the advice and consent of the county board. Members of 
the 7-member board shall be residents of the county who are 18 years of age. The county board may 
by ordinance or resolution provide for the specific authority and procedures of the board”; and  

 



WHEREAS, currently the County Board directly oversees the use of the funds received from 
the tax under 55 ILCS 5/5-1006.5; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment makes it discretionary for the County Board to 
establish a separate 7-member board to oversee the use of the funds and further provides that the 
County Board may establish the authority and procedures of said board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board understands the impact the funds received from the tax under 

55 ILCS 5/5-1006.5 has on Winnebago County and its citizens, which includes providing for 
resources and services needed in the areas of public safety, public facility, mental health, substance 
abuse, or transportation. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the General Assembly and the Governor should strongly consider the 
necessity of SB2278 and recognize that the County Board represents the interests of the entire 
county. Therefore, the County Board should maintain authority on the oversight of the use of the 
funds received from the Special County Retailers’ Occupation Tax (55 ILCS 5/5-1006.5) and is 
opposed to SB2278. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado, Chairman                                Jaime Salgado, Chairman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Steve Schultz          Steve Schultz 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
John Butitta           John Butitta 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Paul Arena      Paul Arena 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman       Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby          Jean Crosby  
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Keith McDonald     Keith McDonald 
 
 



The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County  
of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

 
 



 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



 
Attachment 

 ZONING COMMITTEE  
OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 

 April 22, 2021  
 
 

Zoning Committee……….………….......……………...…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

     PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

  TO BE LAID OVER:   

1. Z-02-21 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE +/- 24.66 ACRES FROM THE AG, 
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT TO THE CG, GENERAL COMMERCIAL 
DISTRICT requested by Dyn Rote, LLC, beneficiary of Trust No. SBC0012, represented by 
Marvin Keys, Attorney, for the property that is commonly known as the northeast corner of Rote 
and N. Lyford Roads in Rockford Township. 
PIN: Part of 12-13-101-005 C.B. District: 8 
Lesa Rating: High Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: YES 
 ZBA Recommends:  APPROVAL (5-0) 
 ZC Recommends:  MOTION TO APPROVE FAILED (3-3) 

 
TO BE VOTED ON:   

2.     A Resolution calling for the Governor and General Assembly to protect Local Control of Zoning 
and Land Use with regard to Commercial Wind Power Energy Facilities (Wind Farms) 

       ZC Recommends:  APPROVAL (6-0)                                                                               Countywide 
                                                 

   

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

3.    COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; 
not intended as an official public notice):  

 
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, May 12, 2021, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of  the    
     County Administration Building.   
 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting 

is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, May 26, 2021, at a TBD time and location.   
  
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

   



























 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



SPONSORED BY:  JAS BILICH 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
      

 
2021 CR_______ 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD TO 

EXECUTE A REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS AND 
 VENTURE ONE DEVELOPMENT, LLC FOR PROJECT SAWGRASS 

 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Industrial Jobs Recovery Law (“IJRL”) promotes the 

development and/or redevelopment of industrial properties by the use of incremental tax revenues 
derived from the tax levies of various taxing districts in redevelopment project areas for the 
payment of redevelopment project cost; and 

 
WHEREAS, the anticipated benefits to the taxing districts of an IJRL district are an 

eventual increase in the assessment base of the taxing districts, the removal of adverse economic 
conditions, the development of industrial parks, and the development, retention and expansion of 
employment opportunities for Illinois residents; and 

 
WHEREAS, due to lack of growth and redevelopment, the County of Winnebago, in 

conjunction with the Village of New Milford and the Village of Cherry Valley, formed an IJRL 
district in 2011 in the industrial area in and around the Baxter Road interchange on I-39 in 
Winnebago County; and 

 
WHEREAS, by Intergovernmental Agreement the Villages of New Milford and Cherry 

Valley granted the County of Winnebago sole authority to negotiate redevelopment agreements 
with prospective developers in the IJRL district and to set the amount of incentives, if any, given 
to such developments, up to fifty percent (50%) of increment from each parcel proposed for 
development; and 

 
WHEREAS, in 2021, Winnebago County negotiated an agreement with Venture One 

Development, LLC (“Venture One”) for an incentive of fifty percent (50%) of increment over ten 
(10) years to locate a business to the IJRL District with the Owner of the Property, which is referred 
to as, “Project Sawgrass”; and  

 
WHEREAS, the tax increment allocation financing offered by the County of Winnebago 

was a considerable factor in Venture One and the Owner and said business to relocate to the IJRL 
district; and 

 
       WHEREAS, the Economic Development Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed and recommend approval of the proposed Redevelopment 



Agreement between the County of Winnebago and Venture One Development, LLC, attached 
hereto as Exhibit A. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized 
to execute the Redevelopment Agreement between the County of Winnebago and Venture One 
Development, LLC, which is referred to as, “Project Sawgrass”, and in substantially the same form 
as that set forth in Exhibit A. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver copies of this resolution to the County Clerk, County Administrator, the 
County Chief Financial Officer, and the Director of Development Services. 
 
 
 
 

 Respectfully submitted, 
        Economic Development Committee 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

JAS BILICH, CHAIRMAN  JAS BILICH, CHAIRMAN 

DOROTHY REDD, VICE CHAIRWOMAN  DOROTHY REDD, VICE CHAIRWOMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

FRED WESCOTT  FRED WESCOTT 
 
 



The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 



1 
76482397.3 

REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 This Redevelopment Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of this ____ day of _________, 
2021, by and between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, an Illinois body politic, having its 
principal offices located at 404 Elm Street, Rockford, Illinois (“County”) and Venture One 
Development, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company, having its principal offices located at 
9500 Bryn Mawr Avenue, Suite 340, Rosemont, Illinois 60018 (“Developer”).  All capitalized 
terms are defined herein or otherwise have such definitions as set forth in the Industrial Jobs 
Recovery Law, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-1 et seq. as amended (the “Act”).   
  

RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the County is a duly organized and existing body politic created under the 
laws of the State of Illinois, and is now operating under the provisions of the Illinois Counties 
Code, 55 ILCS 5/1- 1001, et seq., as amended. 

  WHEREAS, municipalities are authorized under the Act to undertake the redevelopment 
of “industrial park conservation areas” within or near the municipality, including the approval of 
redevelopment plans and projects, if the conditions specified in the Act are met, and they are 
further authorized to implement tax increment allocation financing pursuant to the Act, and to pay 
the costs of such redevelopment as are permitted under the Act; and 

 WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 10(a) of the Constitution of the State of Illinois 
authorizes municipalities and other governmental entities to join together in intergovernmental 
agreements for the purpose of achieving statutory objectives and goals individually and jointly; 
and  

 WHEREAS, the Village of New Milford, an Illinois municipal corporation (“New 
Milford”) and the Village of Cherry Valley, an Illinois municipal corporation (“Cherry Valley”) 
(collectively referred to as “Municipalities”), in cooperation with the County, have determined that 
the area in and around the Baxter Road Interchange on I-39 in Winnebago County is appropriate 
for the formation of an Industrial Park Conservation Area (“IJRL District”) as defined in the Act 
utilizing Tax Increment Financing to spur private investment and development; and 

 WHEREAS, it has been determined by the Municipalities that such development is not 
likely to occur without incentives being made available; and 

 WHEREAS, it has been determined that the formation of the IJRL District will likely 
result in the creation of a large number of jobs which will benefit Cherry Valley, New Milford and 
Winnebago County as a whole; and 

 WHEREAS, the County, in cooperation with the Municipalities, has determined that it is 
in the best interests of the County as a whole, including the Municipalities, to redevelop certain 
real property within the County, (“Redevelopment Project Area”), pursuant to a Redevelopment 
Plan, as such term is defined in the Act; and 



2 
76482397.3 

 WHEREAS, the Municipalities and the County have found that the Redevelopment 
Project Area would not reasonably be anticipated to be developed without adoption of the 
Redevelopment Plan and that the County overall is a labor surplus municipal service area; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Municipalities, by Ordinance adopted by each 
Village Board, approved a Redevelopment Plan and Project, designated the Redevelopment 
Project Area specifically designated as the I-39/Baxter Road Redevelopment Project Area, and 
adopted tax increment allocation financing for the Redevelopment Project; and 

 WHEREAS, by Intergovernmental Agreement by and between the Municipalities and the 
County (“Intergovernmental Agreement”), attached hereto as Exhibit A, the County will 
administer the Special Tax Allocation Fund (“STAF”) created with tax increment allocation 
financing pursuant to the Act and the County is thereby charged with the responsibility of 
negotiating with developers who wish to obtain financial assistance in developing the 
Redevelopment Project Area; and 

 WHEREAS, the Developer is the development manager for the fee simple title holder 
(“Owner”) to a parcel of real estate located within the Redevelopment Project Area, and Developer, 
on behalf of Owner, proposes to redevelop said real estate by constructing thereon a one-story 
industrial/manufacturing facility of approximately 141,360 rentable square feet with related 
improvements (the “Project”), all as generally depicted on Exhibit B attached hereto and 
incorporated herein.  Said real estate is legally described on Exhibit C attached hereto and 
incorporated herein (the “Subject Property”); and   

 WHEREAS, Developer is to do the following in connection with the Project:  (i) undertake 
and pay for the costs of all plans and specifications, professional fees, water connection fees, and 
Baxter Road access fees, and apply for and receive all required plan review approvals and permits; 
and (ii) undertake and complete the Project in compliance with the approved plans and permits 
and all applicable federal, state, County, municipal, village, or administrative laws, ordinances, 
rules, regulations, codes and orders relating in any way to the development of the Project 
(collectively, “Laws”); and   

 WHEREAS, upon substantial completion, the Project will represent an investment on the 
part of the Developer of not less than $20,000,000; and   

 WHEREAS, the County, after due and careful consideration, has concluded that 
redevelopment of the Property, as provided for in this Agreement, will further the growth of the 
County, facilitate the redevelopment of the entire Redevelopment Project Area, increase the 
assessed valuation of real estate situated within the Redevelopment Project Area, increase 
economic activity within the County as a whole, provide a substantial number of jobs to residents 
of the County, and otherwise be in the best interest of the County by furthering the health, safety, 
morals, and welfare of its residents and taxpayers; and 

 WHEREAS, the County desires to enter into this Agreement with the Developer and 
agrees, pursuant to the Intergovernmental Agreement, to use tax increment allocation financing to 



3 
76482397.3 

defray certain costs relating to the Project to the extent such costs qualify as Redevelopment 
Project Costs, as such term is defined in the Act (“Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs”). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
contained in this Agreement and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which 
is hereby acknowledged, the County and Developer agree as follows: 

SECTION 1.  INCORPORATION OF RECITALS 

 The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into this Agreement by reference. The 
paragraph and section headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience only and are not 
intended to limit, vary, define or expand the content thereof.  
 

SECTION 2.  THE PROJECT 

2.1 The Project.  Developer shall begin development of the Project on or before August 1, 
2021, and, subject to the terms of this Section 2.1 below, will subsequently complete construction 
of the Project no later than November 30, 2022 in accordance with final plans and specifications 
of the Project as well as issued permits and all applicable Laws.  The Project will include a parking 
lot for cars and semi-trailer trucks, truck docks, and storm water detention for the benefit of said 
facility.  Developer may connect all on-site water, sanitary, storm and sewer lines constructed on 
the Subject Property to utility lines existing on or near the perimeter of the Subject Property, 
provided Developer first complies with all applicable County requirements governing such 
connections, including the payment of customary fees and costs related thereto, including but not 
limited to the County’s water connection fee which shall be $89,180, calculated based on County 
Ordinance Section 68-15-D-1(b).  Developer shall also have access to the Subject Property from 
Baxter Road provided Developer first complies with the County’s entrance connection fee on 
Baxter Road, requiring the payment by Developer to the County of said Baxter Road access fee of 
$173,901 calculated based on County Ordinance Section 82-10.  Unless the County accepts a letter 
of credit from Developer as a surety for the completion of the Project in accordance with County 
ordinances, Developer shall substantially complete construction of the Project no later than 
November 30, 2022.  Developer will not be entitled to any payment of any portion of incremental 
taxes deposited in the STAF unless and until the Project has been substantially completed in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  For purposes of this paragraph, substantial 
completion of the Project will be deemed to have occurred upon the issuance by the County of a 
temporary or final certificate of occupancy for the Project.  Subject to the right to be reimbursed 
for Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs as provided in this Agreement, development of the 
Subject Property shall be completed at the sole expense of the Developer and shall, unless 
otherwise agreed in advance by the parties in writing (which agreement will be in accordance with 
applicable Laws and will not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), conform in all 
material respects to the plans and specifications approved by the County as a condition to issuing 
the applicable permits issued by the County for the Project.   

2.2 Project construction documents.  Developer will deliver civil engineering plans, building 
elevations, storm water drainage calculations and a site plan for the Project to Cherry Valley for 
zoning and site plan approval.  Developer will obtain any applicable permits and approvals 



4 
76482397.3 

required for the Project from Cherry Valley, the County and other applicable governmental 
authorities, will submit to the County any plans and specifications required by applicable County 
building codes for the issuance of permits required by the County pursuant to applicable Laws and 
will cause the Project to be completed in accordance with final plans and specifications, issued 
permits and applicable Laws.   Developer shall be responsible for paying all required County 
building permit fees.    
 
     SECTION 3.  COVENANTS/REPRESENTATIONS/WARRANTIES OF DEVELOPER  

3.1 Covenants, Representations and Warranties of Developer.  To induce the County to 
execute this Agreement and perform the obligations of the County hereunder, the Developer 
hereby represents, warrants and covenants to the County as of the date of this Agreement, that: 

 (a)  Developer is an Illinois limited liability company duly organized, validly existing, 
qualified to do business in Illinois, and licensed to do business in any other state where, due to the 
nature of its activities or properties, such qualification or license is required; 

 (b)   Developer has the right, power and authority to enter into, execute, deliver and 
perform this Agreement; 

 (c)   The execution, delivery and performance by Developer of this Agreement has been 
duly authorized by all necessary corporate action, and does not and will not violate its Articles of 
Organization or by-laws as amended and supplemented, any applicable provision of law, or 
constitute a breach of, default under or require any consent under an agreement, instrument or 
document to which Developer is now a party or by which Developer is now or may become bound;  

 (d)   Developer is solvent and able to pay its debts as they mature; 

 (e)   There are no actions or proceedings by or before any court, governmental 
commission, board, bureau or any other administrative agency pending, or to the best of 
Developer’s knowledge, threatened against Developer which would impair its ability to perform 
under this Agreement; and 

 (f)   Developer is the development manager for Owner.  Owner owns the Property, 
which is located in the Redevelopment Project Area, and is responsible for paying the real estate 
taxes for the Property. 

SECTION 4.  OWNER’S OBLIGATIONS 

4.1 Use of Subject Property.  Owner shall utilize the Subject Property in a manner consistent 
with IJRL District uses identified in or allowed by the Act and the Redevelopment Plan and 
Project.  Owner intends that the Subject Property shall be utilized solely in a manner consistent 
with industrial and manufacturing purposes as well as other Industrial Park uses identified in the 
Act. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the Subject 
Property may be used for the following purposes, all of which are consistent with the IJRL District 
uses identified in or allowed by the Act and the Redevelopment Plan and Project: (i) receiving, 



5 
76482397.3 

storing, assembling, displaying, shipping, distributing, preparing, selling, and serving as a pick-
up/drop-off location for products, materials, food, grocery, and liquor items; (ii) parking, storage, 
dispatch, use, incidental maintenance, fueling, and outdoor and indoor loading/unloading 
(including driving into and through the building for loading and unloading and parking inside the 
building) of vehicles, including automobiles, fleet vehicles, trucks and trailers; (iii) printing; 
(iv) making products on demand; (v) warehouse and office use; and (vi) using, handling, or storing 
hazardous materials in the ordinary course of business, including (A) in any packaged merchandise 
to be sold, handled, and/or held for shipment to customers, and (B) maintenance, fueling, or 
charging of vehicles, equipment, and machinery (including liquefied hydrogen or other alternative 
fuels); (vii) installing and operating equipment such as satellite dishes, cellular antenna, and 
renewable energy systems, including solar energy systems and hydrogen fuel cell tanks and related 
equipment; (viii) installing and operating battery storage systems, electrical generators, and fuel 
tanks; and (ix) ancillary and related uses for any of the foregoing, all on a twenty-four-hour, seven-
days-per-week, fifty-two-weeks-per-year basis. 

4.2   Real Estate Taxes.  Owner shall pay all Real Estate Tax Bills when due and payable for 
the Subject Property. 

SECTION 5.  TAX INCREMENT ALLOCATION FINANCING 

5.1 Tax Increment Allocation Financing of Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs.  Owner 
has represented to the County that tax increment allocation financing was a considerable factor in 
the decision to move forward with the Project.  The Parties agree that tax increment allocation 
financing, implemented in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Act, the 
Intergovernmental Agreement and this Agreement, will be a source of funding for the Project. 

5.2 Intergovernmental Agreement.  As a condition precedent to the County’s and 
Developer’s and Owner’s obligations contained in this Agreement, the County has entered into an 
Intergovernmental Agreement as allowed by Article VII, Section 10(a) of the Constitution of the 
State of Illinois, which allows the County to administer the STAF created by the tax increment 
allocation financing enacted by the Municipalities and that it shall thereby have the authority to 
use such funds to provide, on a case-by-case basis, incentives for the development of the Subject 
Property.   

5.3 Available Tax Increment.  Annually, the County shall determine the amount of real estate 
tax increment equal to the amount of the total collected tax increment attributable to the Subject 
Property which is deposited in the STAF (“Subject Property Increment”), less a proportionate 
amount of the County’s annual expenses associated with the administration of the STAF 
(“Allocated STAF Expenses”) which shall result in a sum referenced as the “Available Tax 
Increment.”  The Allocated STAF Expenses shall equal the total County annual expenses 
associated with the administration of the STAF for the Redevelopment Project Area multiplied by 
that percentage which equals the Subject Property Increment as it relates to the increment of the 
entire Redevelopment Project Area.   

5.4 Owner Payments.  Subject to Section 13.2 of this Agreement, the County agrees to 
reimburse the Owner fifty percent (50%) of the Available Tax Increment for a period of ten (10) 



6 
76482397.3 

years for the authorized reimbursable Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs of the Project incurred 
by the Owner as set forth on Exhibit D, attached hereto (the “Eligible Redevelopment Project Cost 
Schedule”), and which are approved by the County pursuant to this Section 5.4 of this Agreement.  
The other fifty percent (50%) of the Available Tax Increment shall go solely towards servicing the 
debt in a Special Service Area as detailed in the Redevelopment Agreement between the County 
and Rock 39, LLC., executed on September 7, 2012.   The County’s total reimbursement to the 
Owner from the Available Tax Increment under this Agreement is currently estimated to be 
approximately $8,000,000.  Prior to being provided Available Tax Increment, Owner shall submit 
to the County reasonable evidence that the Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs, for which 
reimbursement is requested, have been incurred and paid for by the Owner.  Reasonable evidence 
shall include, but is not limited to, paid invoices, paid receipts and contracts.  All paid invoices 
and paid receipts shall contain the date of service, type of service, location of service, amount paid, 
name/address/telephone number of the service provider and other information as necessary to 
establish the identity of the provider, type of service and amount paid.  The County reserves the 
right to require additional documentation in its sole discretion but will not unreasonably withhold, 
condition or delay its approval under this Agreement.  Subject to Section 13.2 of this Agreement, 
and subject to the County’s receipt of said reasonable evidence of the Eligible Redevelopment 
Project Costs, the Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs will be paid to Owner within ninety (90) 
days of receipt on the tax increment in the STAF, however only to the extent that such revenue is 
received by the County.     

THE COUNTY’S OBLIGATION TO PAY THE OWNER UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IS A 
LIMITED OBLIGATION PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE INCREMENTAL TAXES 
DEPOSITED IN THE STAF CREATED WITH RESPECT TO THE DEVELOPMENT 
PROJECT AS DEFINED IN SECTION 2.1 ABOVE, AND SHALL NOT BE A GENERAL 
OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY OR SECURED BY THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF 
THE COUNTY.  

SECTION 6.  TERM 

Unless earlier terminated pursuant to Section 13 of this Agreement, the term of this Agreement 
shall commence on the date of execution and end upon the first to occur of (i) the date of the 
aggregate payments to the Owner pursuant to Section 5.4 of this Agreement equals the total 
Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs expended or (ii) the termination of the Redevelopment 
Project Area as required by law. 

 

SECTION 7.  NO LIABILITY OF COUNTY TO OTHERS FOR DEVELOPER’S 
EXPENSES 

 The County shall have no obligation to pay costs of the Project to any person other than 
the Owner, nor shall the County be obligated to pay any contractor, subcontractor, mechanic, or 
materialman providing services or materials to the Owner for the development of the Project; 
provided, however, that, subject to Sections 9 and 10 of this Agreement and upon Owner’s written 



7 
76482397.3 

request, the County will pay amounts owed to Owner under this Agreement to a tenant at the 
Project.   

SECTION 8.  NO DISCRIMINATION  

 The Developer for itself and its successors and assigns agrees that in the development of 
the Project, the Developer shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, religion, sex or national origin.  The Developer shall take 
reasonable action to require that, during the development of the Project, applicants are employed 
and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, creed, color, 
religion, sex or national origin.    

SECTION 9.  ASSIGNMENT  

 Neither Developer nor Owner may sell, assign or otherwise transfer its interest in this 
Agreement in whole or in part without the written consent of the County; provided, however, that 
(a) Owner may, without the written consent of the County, assign its interest in this Agreement to 
an entity in title to the Subject Property or to a tenant of the Subject Property or collaterally assign 
its interest in this Agreement to a mortgage lender holding a lien encumbering the Subject Property 
as partial security for the payment of its debt to that lender, and (b) Developer may, with the written 
consent of the County and Owner, not to be unreasonably withheld, assign or otherwise transfer 
its interest in this Agreement in whole or in part.  Owner and Developer, as applicable, will provide 
written notice to the County of any assignment of their respective interest in this Agreement (other 
than a collateral assignment) within thirty (30) days after the effective date of that assignment.  In 
particular, within thirty (30) days after its acquisition of fee title to the Property, the original Owner 
hereunder (i.e., the entity who has engaged Developer as its development manager for the Project) 
will provide written notice to the County of its acquisition of fee title to the Property, which notice 
will include the name and mailing address of that Owner for notice purposes hereunder.  Any 
assignee of Owner’s or Developer’s interest in this Agreement (other than a collateral assignee) 
will agree in writing to assume all remaining executory obligations of its assignor under this 
Agreement.   

SECTION 10.  SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS  

 The terms, conditions and covenants set forth in this Agreement shall extend to, be binding 
upon, and inure to the benefit of the respective successors and permitted assigns of the County, the 
Developer and Owner and shall run with the land.  Any person or entity now or hereafter owning 
legal title to all or any portion of the Subject Property shall be bound to this Agreement only during 
the period such person or entity is the legal titleholder of the Subject Property or a portion thereof, 
however, that all such legal title holders shall remain liable after their ownership interest in the 
Subject Property ceases as to those liabilities and obligations which accrued during their period of 
ownership but remain unsatisfied or unperformed.  In addition, Developer shall be bound to this 
Agreement only with respect to obligations that accrued hereunder prior to completion of the 
Project (as evidenced by the issuance of a final certificate of occupancy).  As used in this 
Agreement, the term “Owner” will mean the Owner of fee title to the Subject Property from time 
to time during the term of this Agreement.   



8 
76482397.3 

SECTION 11.  NO JOINT VENTURE, AGENCY OR PARTNERSHIP CREATED  

 Neither anything in this Agreement nor any acts of the parties to this Agreement shall be 
deemed or construed by the parties or any third person, to create or imply any relationship of a 
third party beneficiary, principal or agent, limited or general partnership, or joint venture or to 
create or imply any association or relationship involving the County. 

SECTION 12.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 

12.1 Defense of IJRL District.  In the event that any court or governmental agency having 
jurisdiction over enforcement of the Act and the subject matter contemplated by this Agreement 
shall determine that this Agreement or payments to be made hereunder are contrary to law, or in 
the event that the legitimacy of the IJRL DISTRICT is otherwise challenged before a court or 
governmental agency having jurisdiction thereof, the County, Owner and Developer shall 
reasonably cooperate with each other concerning an appropriate strategy acceptable to all parties 
to defend the validity of the IJRL District and this Agreement.  Furthermore, each party shall pay 
their respective legal fees, court costs and other expenses directly related to defense of the IJRL 
DISTRICT that each party shall incur as a result of defense of the IJRL DISTRICT.  In the event 
of an adverse lower court or agency ruling, payments of tax increment allocation financing shall 
be suspended during the pendency of any appeal thereof, but such payments shall be reinstated 
retroactively if such adverse ruling is reversed by the reviewing court or agency and to the extent 
that the STAF has received such increment.  

SECTION 13.  DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

13.1 Events of Default.  The occurrence of any one or more of the following events, subject to 
the provisions of Section 13.2, shall constitute an “Event of Default” by Developer or Owner 
hereunder, as applicable: 

 (a) the failure of the Developer to perform, keep or observe any of the Developer’s 
respective covenants, conditions, promises, agreements or obligations under this Agreement; 

 (b) the failure of the Owner to perform, keep or observe any of the Owner’s respective 
covenants, conditions, promises, agreements or obligations under this Agreement; 

 (c) if, at any time, any material term, warranty, representation or statement made or 
furnished by Developer or Owner (including the representations and warranties of Developer 
described in Section 2.1 hereof) is not true and correct in any material respect because of which 
Developer or Owner is unable to fulfill its obligations hereunder;  

 (d) at any time prior to completion of the Project (as evidenced by the issuance of a 
final certificate of occupancy), the commencement of any proceedings in bankruptcy by or against 
the Developer or for the liquidation or reorganization of the Developer, or alleging that the 
Developer is insolvent or unable to pay its debts as they mature, or for the readjustment or 
arrangement of the Developer’s debts, whether under the United States Bankruptcy Code or under 
any other state or federal law, now or hereafter existing for the relief of debtors; provided, however, 
that if such commencement of proceedings is involuntary, such action shall not constitute an Event 



9 
76482397.3 

of Default unless such proceedings are not dismissed within ninety (90) days after the 
commencement of such proceedings;  

 (e) the commencement of any proceedings in bankruptcy by or against the Owner or 
for the liquidation or reorganization of the Owner, or alleging that the Owner is insolvent or unable 
to pay its debts as they mature, or for the readjustment or arrangement of the Owner’s debts, 
whether under the United States Bankruptcy Code or under any other state or federal law, now or 
hereafter existing for the relief of debtors; provided, however, that if such commencement of 
proceedings is involuntary, such action shall not constitute an Event of Default unless such 
proceedings are not dismissed within ninety (90) days after the commencement of such 
proceedings;  

 (f) the failure of the Owner to pay any real estate tax assessment when due; or 

 (g) the assignment or other transfer by the Developer or Owner of its right, title and 
interest in and to this Agreement without the prior written approval of the County in violation of 
the terms of this Agreement. 

13.2 Remedies.   

 (a) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the County shall provide the defaulting 
party with a written statement setting forth the Event of Default.  The County may not exercise 
any remedies against the defaulting party in connection with such Event of Default until thirty (30) 
days after giving such notice.  If such Event of Default cannot be cured within such thirty (30) day 
period, said thirty (30) day period shall be extended for such time as is reasonably necessary for 
the curing of the same, as long as the defaulting party is diligently proceeding to cure such Event 
of Default.  An Event of Default not cured as provided above shall constitute a breach of this 
Agreement.  Any failure or delay by the County in asserting any of its rights or remedies as to any 
Event of Default or alleged Event of Default or breach shall not operate as a waiver of any such 
Event of Default or breach of any rights or remedies it may have as a result of such Event of 
Default or breach. 

 (b) If the defaulting party shall fail to cure any Event of Default after the expiration of 
the cure period described in subparagraph (a), the County will be under no obligation to continue 
to pay any portion of Available Tax Increment under this Agreement until such time as the Event 
of Default has been cured.   

 (c) The rights and remedies of the County are cumulative and the exercise by the 
County of one or more of such rights or remedies shall not preclude the exercise by it, at the same 
time or different times, of any other rights or remedies for the same Event of Default or for any 
other Event of Default by a defaulting party.   

 (d) If the County is in default of this Agreement, which is defined as the County’s lack 
of fulfillment of any obligation under this Agreement, the Developer or the Owner shall provide 
the County with a written statement setting forth the default of the County.  Neither the Developer 
nor the Owner may exercise any remedies against the County in connection with such failure until 
thirty (30) days after giving such notice.  If such default cannot be cured within such thirty (30) 



10 
76482397.3 

day period, said thirty (30) day period shall be extended for such time as is reasonably necessary 
for the curing of the same, as long as the County is diligently proceeding to cure such default.  A 
default not cured as provided above shall constitute a breach of this Agreement.  Any failure or 
delay by the Developer or the Owner in asserting any of its rights or remedies as to any default or 
alleged default or breach shall not operate as a waiver of any such default or breach of any rights 
or remedies it may have as a result of such default or breach.  

 (e) If the County shall fail to cure any breach by the County of this Agreement not 
cured within the cure period described in subparagraph (d), Developer and Owner shall each have 
as its sole and exclusive remedy, the right of specific performance to compel the County to perform 
its obligations under this Agreement. 

SECTION 14.  INDEMNIFICATION 

 Developer and Owner each agree to indemnify, pay, defend and hold the County and its 
elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and attorneys (individually an “Indemnitee,” 
and collective the “Indemnitees”) harmless from and against, any and all liabilities, obligations, 
losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, claims, costs, expenses and disbursements of 
any kind or nature whatsoever (and including without limitation, the reasonable fees and 
disbursements of counsel for such Indemnitees in connection with any investigative, 
administrative or judicial proceeding commenced or threatened, whether or not such Indemnitees 
shall be designated a party thereto), that may be imposed on, suffered, incurred by or asserted 
against the Indemnitees in any manner relating or arising out of: 

 (i)  Developer or Owner’s failure to comply with any of the terms, covenants and conditions 
contained within this Agreement; or 

 (ii)  Developer’s, Owner’s or any contractor’s failure to pay general contractors, 
subcontractors or materialmen in connection with the STAF funded improvements or any other 
Project improvement; or 

 (iii)  the existence of any material misrepresentation by Developer or Owner in this 
Agreement; or 

 (iv) Developer’s or Owner’s failure to cure any material misrepresentation by it in this 
Agreement;  

provided, however, that neither Developer nor Owner shall have any obligation to an Indemnitee 
arising from the gross negligence, wanton or willful misconduct of that Indemnitee.  To the extent 
that the preceding sentence may be unenforceable because it is violative of any law or public 
policy, Developer or Owner, as applicable, shall contribute the maximum portion that is permitted 
to pay and satisfy under the applicable law, to the payment and satisfaction of all indemnified 
liabilities incurred by the Indemnitees or any of them.  The provisions of the undertakings and 
indemnification set out in this Section 14 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.              

 

   



11 
76482397.3 

SECTION 15.  NOTICE 
 

 Unless otherwise specified, any notice, demand or request required hereunder shall be 
given in writing at the addresses set forth below, by any of the following means: (a) personal 
service; (b) overnight courier, or (c) registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. 

If to the County:       If to the Developer: 
 
County of Winnebago      Venture One Development, LLC. 
Attn:  Chairman Joseph Chiarelli    9500 Bryn Mawr Ave., Suite 340 
404 Elm Street      Rosemont, Illinois 60018 
Rockford, Illinois 61101     Attn: Mark Goode 
 
With Copies to:      With Copies to: 
 
Office of the Winnebago County State’s Attorney  O’Rourke, Hogan, Fowler & Dwyer  
Civil Bureau       10 South LaSalle Street, Suite 3700 
Courthouse Building      Chicago, Illinois 60603  
400 W. State Street, Suite 804    Attn:  Howard Goldblatt 
Rockford, Illinois 61101 
 
Such addresses may be changed by notice to the other parties given in the same manner provided 
above.  Any notice, demand, or request sent pursuant to this Section shall be effective upon receipt 
or refusal of delivery. 

SECTION 16. MISCELLANEOUS 

16.1 Amendment.  This Agreement, and the Exhibits attached hereto may not be amended or 
modified without the prior written consent of the parties hereto, or their successors in interest.     

16.2 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement (including each Exhibit attached hereto, which is 
hereby incorporated herein by reference) constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties 
hereto and it supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and discussions between the parties 
relative to the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and inure 
to the benefit of and be enforceable by and against their respective successors, personal 
representatives, heirs, legatees, and assigns.      

16.3 Limitation of Liability. No member, official of employee of the County shall be 
personally liable to Developer, Owner or any successor in interest in the event of any default or 
breach by the County or for any amount which may become due to Developer or Owner from the 
County or any successor in interest or on any obligation under the terms of this Agreement.  

16.4 Waiver.   Waiver by the County, Developer or Owner with respect to any breach of this 
Agreement shall not be considered or treated as a waiver of the rights of the respective party with 
respect to any other default or with respect to any particular default, except to the extent 
specifically waived by the County, Owner or Developer in writing. No delay or omission on the 
part of a party in exercising any right shall operate as a waiver of such right or any other right 



12 
76482397.3 

unless pursuant to the specific terms hereof. A waiver by a party of a provision of this Agreement 
shall not prejudice or constitute a waiver of such party's right otherwise to demand strict 
compliance with that provision or any other provision of this Agreement. No prior waiver by a 
party, nor any course of dealing between the parties hereto, shall constitute a waiver of any such 
parties' rights or of any obligations of any other party hereto as to any future transactions. 

16.5 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

16.6 Severability.  If any provision in this Agreement, or any section, paragraph, sentence, 
clause, phrase, word or the application thereof, in any circumstance, is held invalid, this Agreement 
shall be construed as if such invalid part were never included herein and the remainder of this 
Agreement shall be and remain valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

16.7  Choice of Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the internal laws of the State of Illinois without regard to its conflicts of law principles.  

16.8 Venue and Consent to Jurisdiction.  If there is a lawsuit under this Agreement, each party 
agrees to submit to the jurisdiction of the Circuit Court for the 17th Judicial Circuit, Winnebago 
County, Illinois.         

16.9 Force Majeure. Neither the County, nor Owner nor Developer nor any successor in 
interest to any of them shall be considered in breach of or in default of its obligations under this 
Agreement in the event of any delay caused by damage or destruction by fire or other casualty, 
strike, shortage of material, unusually adverse weather conditions such as, by way of illustration 
and not limitation, severe rain storms or below freezing temperatures of abnormal degree or for an 
abnormal duration, tornadoes or cyclones, and other events or conditions beyond the reasonable 
control of the party affected which in fact interferes with the ability of such party to discharge its 
obligations hereunder; provided, however that no such delay will affect any obligation under this 
Agreement for the payment of money.  The individual or entity relying on this section with respect 
to any such delay shall, upon the occurrence of the event causing such delay, give written notice 
to the other parties to this Agreement within a reasonable period of time thereafter. The individual 
or entity relying on this section with respect to any such delay may rely on this section only to the 
extent of the actual number of days of delay effected by any such events described above. 

16.10 Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon Developer, Owner the County and 
their respective successors and permitted assigns (as provided herein) and shall inure to the benefit 
of Developer, Owner the County and their respective successors and permitted assigns (as 
provided herein). Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall not run to the benefit 
of, or be enforceable by, any person or entity other than a party to this Agreement and its successors 
and permitted assigns. This Agreement should not be deemed to confer upon third parties any 
remedy, claim, right of reimbursement or other right. 

16.11 Drafter Bias.  The parties acknowledge and agree that the terms of this Agreement are the 
result of negotiations between the parties, both of whom are represented by independent counsel, 
and that this Agreement is the result of said negotiations.  As a result, in the event that a court is 



13 
76482397.3 

asked to interpret any portion of this Agreement, neither of the parties shall be deemed the drafter 
hereof and neither shall be given benefit of such presumption that may be set out by law. 

16.12 Attorneys’ Fees. In the event of a default and/or litigation arising out of enforcement of 
this Agreement, the parties hereto acknowledge and agree that each party shall be responsible for 
their own costs, charges, expenses, and their reasonable attorney’s fees arising as a result thereof. 

16.13 Memorandum of Agreement.  Owner and the County agree to record a memorandum of 
this Agreement with the Winnebago County Recorder of Deeds. 

  



14 
76482397.3 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
by their duly authorized officers on the above date.  

DEVELOPER:     COUNTY: 

Venture One Development, LLC, an Illinois County of Winnebago, an Illinois body  
limited liability company    politic and corporate 
 
 
By:_____________________________________ By:____________________________________ 
        Joseph Chiarelli 
Its:__________________________________  Chairman of the County Board of the  
        County of Winnebago, Illinois  
 

       ATTEST: 

 

       ______________________________   
       Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
       County Board of the 
       County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

 

 

 



15 
76482397.3 

EXHIBIT A 

 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGES OF CHERRY 
VALLEY, ILLINOIS, NEW MILFORD, ILLINOIS AND THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, 

ILLINOIS 

As attached 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









































35 
76482397.3 

EXHIBIT B  

THE PROJECT 

 The Project consists of the redevelopment of the lot commonly referred to as, 5266 
Baxter Road, PIN: 16-28-300-026 & part of 16-28-300-024.  See referenced site plan and 
tentative plats attached.  
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 













41 
76482397.3 

EXHIBIT C  

 LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF SUBJECT PROPERTY 

 

PARCEL 1 

 

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 43 
NORTH, RANGE 2 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN WINNEBAGO 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
OF SAID SECTION 28; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 48 SECONDS 
WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 28, A DISTANCE OF 2161.77 FEET TO A POINT 499.86 FEET EAST OF 
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AS MEASURED 
ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE;  THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 09 
SECONDS EAST ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE WEST LINE OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 28, A DISTANCE OF 67.00 FEET TO 
THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BAXTER ROAD PER WARRANTY DEED PER 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 20191028226 AND BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE CONTINUING  NORTH 00 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 09 SECONDS EAST 
ALONG SAID LINE, A DISTANCE OF 1601.22 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 
36 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH 
LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 28, A DISTANCE OF 
1046.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN ROCK 39, UNIT ONE, 
BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 28, 
TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 2 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 1, 2007 AS 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 200700761881, AND CERTIFICATE OF CORRECTION PER 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 200700771378, IN WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS; 
THENCE THE FOLLOWING (5) COURSES ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1; 
1) SOUTH 00 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 727.74 
FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; 2) THENCE SOUTHERLY 50.08 FEET ALONG 
A CURVE, CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 467.00 FEET, A CHORD 
BEARING OF SOUTH 03 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 28 SECONDS WEST, A CHORD 
DISTANCE OF 50.05 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; 3) THENCE SOUTH 06 
DEGREES 24 MINUTES 47 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 299.50 FEET TO A 
POINT OF CURVATURE;  4) THENCE SOUTHERLY 57.16 FEET ALONG A CURVE, 
CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 533.00 FEET, A CHORD BEARING 
OF SOUTH 03 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 28 SECONDS WEST, A CHORD DISTANCE 
OF 57.13 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; 5) THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 16 
MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 470.31 FEET TO THE NORTH 



42 
76482397.3 

RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BAXTER ROAD PER WARRANTY DEED DOCUMENT 
NUMBER 20151004581; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 48 SECONDS 
WEST ALONG THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BAXTER ROAD PER 
WARRANTY DEEDS PER DOCUMENT NUMBERS 20151004581 AND 20191028226, 
A DISTANCE OF 1008.19 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING IN WINNEBAGO 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 
 

 

PARCEL 2: 

 

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 43 
NORTH, RANGE 2 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN WINNEBAGO 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
OF SAID SECTION 28; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 48 SECONDS 
WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 28, A DITANCE OF 459.22 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY 
EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF LOT 1 IN ROCK 39, UNIT THREE, BEING A 
SUBDIVSION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, 
RANGE 2 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED JUNE 2, 2014 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 20141016899 AND 
CERTIFICATE OF CORRECTION RECORDED JUNE 9, 2014 AS DOCUMENT 
NUMBER 20141017655, IN WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS;  THENCE NORTH 00 
DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID LINE, A DISTACNCE OF 
50.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 IN SAID ROCK 39, 
UNIT THREE; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 00 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 
SECONDS EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 IN ROCK 39, UNIT 
THREE, A DISTANCE OF 17.00 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 
BAXTER ROAD PER WARRANTY DEED CONVEYED TO WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
PER DOCUMENT NUMBER 20151004581 AND BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID 
LINE, A DISTANCE OF 628.05 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF LOT 1 IN ROCK 39, 
UNIT ONE, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 
28, TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 2 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 1, 2007 AS 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 200700761881 AND CERTIFICATE OF CORRECTION 
RECORDED NOVEMBER 21, 2007 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 200700771378, IN 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 09 
SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID LINE, A DISTANCE OF 321.92 FEET TO THE 



43 
76482397.3 

SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF A 230.00 WIDE RIGHT OF WAY GRANT TO 
COMMONWEALTH EDISON COMPANY RECORDED JUNE 1, 1967 AS DOCUMENT 
NUMBER 1161309; THENCE NORTH 64 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 51 SECONDS 
EAST ALONG SAID LINE, A DISTANCE OF 691.50 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 IN SAID  ROCK 39, UNIT THREE; THENCE SOUTH 00 
DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID 
LOT 1 IN ROCK 39, UNIT THREE, A DISTANCE OF 611.04 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, IN WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 
 

H:\D\D569\D569t\S\Docs\Legal\Combined Parcels 1 and 2.docx 

 



44 
76482397.3 

EXHIBIT D  

ELIGIBLE REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT COST SCHEDULE  

ELIGIBLE COSTS LIST: 

• Property assembly and acquisition 
• Studies, surveys, development of plans, and specifications, cost of implementation and 

administration of the plan 
 Civil Engineering, Surveying & Layout 
 Testing 
 Architectural Design 
 Insurance 
 Developer Fee 
 General Conditions 
 General Contractor Overhead & Profit 
 Legal 
 Title Insurance 
 Other Professional Consultant Fees 

• Building demolitions and site grading/preparation 
 Demolition / Site Clearing 
 Site & Building Earthwork 

• Environmental Remediation 
• Construction or improvement of public improvements 

 Site Utilities 
• The cost of marketing sites within the redevelopment project area to prospective 

businesses, developers, and investors 
 Brokerage Commissions 

• Employment and Training 
• Relocation Costs 
• Developer Interest Costs 

 

 
4827-7986-9650, v. 12 



 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Monday, April 12, 2021   
   Committee: Economic Development 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush 
  

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department  
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: buildingdept@wincoil.us      

 

 
Document Title:  Resolution Authorizing The Chairman Of The County Board To Execute A 

Redevelopment Agreement By And Between The County Of Winnebago, Illinois 
And Venture One Development, LLC For Project Sawgrass 

 
County Code: Article VII, Section 10(a) of the Constitution of the State of Illinois 
 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, April 22, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted? NA Appropriation Amount:   NA 

 
If not, explain funding source:   The new tax growth (EAV) generated by the development of 
the site offsets the developers incentives. 
ORG - OBJ - Project Code: NA Budget Impact: NA (positive impact) 

 
Background Information: 
Winnebago County Board approved Ordinances December 27, 2011 to establish in partnership 
with the Village of Cherry Valley and the Village of New Milford under the authority of the 
Industrial Jobs Recovery Law (IJRL) a Tax Increment Financing District to redevelopment the 
area commonly referred to as, “I-39 & Baxter TIF”. There have been 2 previous projects 
approved in the designated area, FedEx (Board approved in 2017) and Berner Foods (Board 
approved in 2018). 
 
Recommendation:  
Winnebago County staff supports the continued efforts to development this area to further grow 
the Equalized Assessed Value (EAV), especially considering the County’s investment in this area. 
A new 141,360 (approximately) square foot facility on Baxter Road, with the project investment 
of greater than $20,000,000. 
 
Contract/Agreement: 
Yes, as attached with Resolution. 
 
Legal Review:   
Yes 
 
Follow-Up: 
The Venture One Development, LLC and/or County Staff can provide updates regarding the 
progression of the project. 

http://www.wincoil.us/


S M
ulf

or
d R

d

Baxter Rd

I39
 S

I39
 N

I39N

Onramp From

Baxter Rd

Rotary Rd

I39
N

Offra
mp T

o
Baxt

er 
Rd

I39S Onramp
From

Baxter Rd

I39
S O

ffr
am

p
To

 B
ax

ter
 R

d

16-28-400-02316-28-300-024

16-28-400-013

16-32-200-005

16-29-400-004

16-33-100-009

16-29-200-002

16-29-326-002

16-28-300-026

16-33-100-012

16-28-300-025

16-29-400-011

16-32-200-001

16-28-400-019

16-28-400-017
16-29-400-002

16-29-400-008

16-28-400-024

16-28-400-022

16-33-200-009

16-28-300-012

16-33-100-013

16-28-300-009

16-29-400-005

16-28-300-021

Maggio
Trucking

XPO Logistics
Water Tower

FedEx

Berner
Food &

Beverage

/
The Winnebago County computerized aerial base property maps were assembled using
County, State and other data. The map files are not intended to be the official survey of
the land. The official land records are on file in the Winnebago County Recorder's Office. 1 inch = 800 feet

I-39 & Baxter TIF Development Area

Legend
Business

IJRL Development

I-39 Baxter IJRL TIF Area

Tax Parcels

Created by Staff
Date: 4/9/2021

_̂

Property In Question



4/9/2021 Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 1/3

Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

LLC File Detail Report

Entity Information

Agent Information

Office of the Secretary of State Jesse White  

File Number 00351652

Entity Name VENTURE ONE REAL ESTATE LLC

Status ACTIVE

Principal Office
9500 W. BRYN MAWR AVE STE 340 
ROSEMONT, IL 600180000

Entity Type
LLC

Type of LLC
Domestic

Organization/Admission Date
Friday, 17 December 1999

Jurisdiction
IL

Duration
PERPETUAL

Name



4/9/2021 Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 2/3

Annual Report

Managers

Series Name

LP AGENTS LLC

Address
2 N LASALLE ST #1300 
CHICAGO , IL 60602

Change Date
Friday, 25 September 2015

For Year
2020

Filing Date
Sunday, 29 November 2020

Name 
Address
GOODE, MARK B 
9500 W. BRYN MAWR AVE STE 340 
ROSEMONT, IL 600180000

Name 
Address
GOODE, MATTHEW 
9500 W. BRYN MAWR AVE STE 340 
ROSEMONT, IL 600180000

Name 
Address
SPLANSKY, ROY L 
9500 W. BRYN MAWR AVE STE 340 
ROSEMONT, IL 600180000

Name 
Address
STOLLER, RYAN S. 
9500 W BRYN MAWR AVE #340 
ROSEMONT, IL 600180000



4/9/2021 Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 3/3

Fri Apr 09 2021This information was printed from www.cyberdriveillinois.com, the official website of the Illinois Secretary of State's Office.

NOT AUTHORIZED TO ESTABLISH SERIES

Return to Search 

File Annual Report

Adopting Assumed Name
Articles of Amendment Effecting A Name Change

Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered O�ce

(One Certificate per Transaction)

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/


Paid on 
11/17/2020

16-28-300-023

250 PARKWAY DR # 370
ROCK 39 LLC

2511

1

*$RE16283000231$*
Property Code

16-28-300-023

Parcel ID

Paid on 
11/17/2020

LINCOLNSHIRE IL  60069-

Phone: (_____) ______ - ________

Change of Address Form

New Name / Address

Date: _____/_____/_______

$0.0006/19/2020

TOTAL TAX DUE:

- 2019 Parcel ID: 16-28-300-023

  Taxing Body Current TaxCurrent RatePrior TaxPrior Rate

16.630.746517.210.7718WINNEBAGO COUNTY
4.890.21965.470.2455- PENSION

2.340.10502.440.1099FOREST PRESERVE
0.130.00570.110.0048- PENSION

2.890.12983.080.1385ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP
0.000.00000.000.0000CHERRY VALLEY VILLAGE

21.740.976322.681.0186CHERRY VALLEY FIRE
7.400.33187.870.3533CHERRY VALLEY LIBRARY
0.980.04430.830.0375- PENSION

1.930.08672.000.0898GREATER RKFD AIRPORT
0.320.01440.390.0175- PENSION

144.756.5000157.017.0503ROCKFORD SCHOOL DIST 205
8.750.39296.690.3005- PENSION

10.470.470311.110.4987COMMUNITY COLLEGE  511
0.000.00000.000.0000- PENSION

2.960.13273.150.1416ROCKFORD TWSP ROAD
539.180.0000458.620.0000I-39 / BAXTER ROAD TIF

0.00I-39 BAXTER ROAD SSA

Totals: 10.7783 698.66 10.1560 765.36

Township Assessor Phone Number: 815-965-0300
$765.36

Fair Market Value:

0

Location of

5266 BAXTER RD Property:

2

09/04/2020 $0.00

Property Code
*$RE16283000232$*

Parcel ID

16-28-300-023

x
Board of Review Equalized Value =
Home Improvement Exemption -
Disabled Vet Adapted Housing Exemption -
Department of Revenue Assessed Value =
State Multiplier for Winn Cnty x
Revised Equalized Value =
Senior Freeze Exemption -
FAF/VAF Exemption -

-
-
-

General Homestead Exemption

7,536
0
0

7,536
1.0000

7,536
0
0
0

Board of Review Assessed Value 7,536
Township Equalization factor 1.0000

0Senior Citizen (over 65) Exemption
Disabled Person / Disabled Vet Exemption 0

-Returning Veteran Exemption 0

+
-
=
x
=

Non AD Valorem Tax 0.00
Abatements 0
Calculated Tax $765.36
Tax Rate for Tax Code 439 10.1560
Taxable Value 7,536

    Formula for Tax Calculation

ROCK 39 LLC
250 PARKWAY DR # 370
LINCOLNSHIRE IL  60069-

250 PARKWAY DR # 370

LINCOLNSHIRE IL  60069-

ROCK 39 LLC

THIS IS THE ONLY NOTICE YOU WILL
RECEIVE FOR BOTH INSTALLMENTS.

WINNEBAGO COUNTY TREASURER AND COLLECTOR Ph. No. (815) 319-4400 2019

BEG NW COR LT 1 ROCK 39 UNIT ONE SUB TH S 727.74 FT S 5

Reason for Change Signature

 ABBREVIATED LEGAL DESCRIPTION



ROCK 39 - AERIAL WITH INTERSTATE ACCESS



ROCK 39 - PARK AERIAL

BAXTER ROAD



PROJECT SAWGRASS - SITE PLAN



 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



  Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
 
 
Prepared By:    Debbie Crozier/Human Resources  
Committee:      Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:    April 15, 2021 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Authorizing the Renewal of the Voluntary Vision Plan   
Board Meeting Date:   April 22, 2021  
 
Budget Information: 
  

Was item budgeted?   N/A                         Appropriation Amount:                                         

If not, explain funding source:  This voluntary benefit is 100% employee paid.     

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A                   Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information:    
The voluntary vision plan has been offered to employees since June 1, 2011.  We currently have 320 
employees enrolled in the voluntary vision plan.     
  
Recommendation:   
The Operations and Administrative Committee, chaired by Keith McDonald, has reviewed the 
resolution presented to the Board and recommends its approval.  Rates for the voluntary vision plan 
are being reduced by approximately 6% effective June 1, 2021.  

Contract/Agreement:   June 1, 2021 through May 31, 2023  
 
Legal Review:  Reviewed with the States Attorney’s office. 
 
Follow-Up:   If approved, this would be effective June 1, 2021. 

http://www.wincoil.us/


      County Board:  April 22, 2021  
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2021 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH                                
VISION SERVICE PLAN (VSP) FOR VOLUNTARY VISION INSURANCE 

  
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, offers a to its employees the option of 

participating in a voluntary vision plan; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago has offered the VSP voluntary vision insurance 
coverage to its employees during 2020, employees that elect this plan pay the full cost of the plan;  
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County’s Benefit Consultant recommends continuation of the VSP voluntary 

vision plan; and,   
 
 WHEREAS, VSP has proposed the following rates to Winnebago County thru May 31, 2023: 

 
Employee Only:  $4.36 per pay period 

Family:  $12.03 per pay period 
This is approximately a 6% decrease from previous rates. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the renewal and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with VSP for the administration of the voluntary vision plan 
through May 31, 2023.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
with VSP, PO Box 742135, Los Angeles, CA 90074-2135 for administration of the voluntary vision 
plan. 
   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human 
Resources and the County Auditor. 
 
 
 
 



    Respectfully Submitted, 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD  
 
 

JAIME SALGAOD  JAIMIE SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



  CC:  TODD SOMA 
          GALLAGHER BENEFIT SERVICES, INC. 

 

 

 
 

December 29, 2020 

 

DEBBIE CROZIER 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
404 ELM ST 

ROCKFORD, IL 61101‐1239 

 

Re: Winnebago County #30025945 / June 1, 2021 Renewal Notification 

 

Dear Debbie Crozier: 

 

We thank you for being a valued VSP® Vision Care customer since 2011. 
We’re committed to meeting and exceeding the expectations of your employees, as we’ve done for the last 10 years. Your 

employees continue to benefit from participating in the VSP Signature Plan, our premium plan. 

Your renewal includes fully‐covered, standard progressive lenses — only from VSP. 
VSP is raising the bar as the only vision care company to offer fully‐covered, standard progressive lenses. Your employees 
will automatically get this new benefit feature. There’s no extra cost and nothing more for you and your employees to do. 
Their VSP doctor will help determine which lens best suits their patient’s individual lifestyle and vision needs. This is one 
more option to help our members enjoy clear, precise vision at an exceptional value. 

 
Also standard with VSP: 

 Lowest out‐of‐pocket costs on the widest selection of lenses. 

 VSP Exclusive Member Extras—more than $2,500 savings included on vision care, hearing, medical, and lifestyle 
services. 

 Eye Health Management—your employees’ wider safety net to catch chronic conditions like diabetes early, before 
costly symptoms emerge. 

 Diabetic Eyecare Plus—coverage of additional eye care services for members with diabetic eye disease, glaucoma 
or age‐related macular degeneration. 

 
To see all the details, please refer to your renewal proposal attached.  
 
Let’s stay together. 
Sign the attached to continue with VSP and your premium plan for this next policy and return it to me via email at 
Sara.Bolchi@vsp.com by May 1, 2021.   
 
Thank you, 

 

Sara Bolchi 
Key Client Manager 

 

 

   



  CC:  TODD SOMA 
          GALLAGHER BENEFIT SERVICES, INC. 

 

 

RENEWAL AGREEMENT 

Group Name/Number:  Winnebago County / # 30025945 
 
Current Plan Design  
Plan Type:  Signature ‐ C 
Frequency:  12/12/12 
Copays:  $10 Exam/$25 Materials 

RFA & ECL Allowance:  $130 & $130 
Current Rates:  $9.28/25.59 
Renewal Rates:  $8.72/24.05 

 
Alternative Plan Design 

Plan Type:  Signature ‐ C 
Frequency:  12/12/12 
Copays:  $10 Exam/$25 Materials 
Covered Lens Enhancements:           Anti‐Glare Coating & UV Protection  
RFA & ECL Allowance:  $130 & $130 
Alternative Rates:  $9.62/26.52 

 
Open AccessSM Allowances: Examination up to $50, Single Vision up to $50, Lined Bifocal up to $75, Lined Trifocal up to 
$100, Lenticular up to $125, Frame up to $70, Elective Contact Lenses up to $105 & Necessary Contact Lenses $210. 
 
Renewal Options 

    Renew with current plan design 
    Renew with alternative plan design  
 

Contract Period for all Options:  June 1, 2021 through May 31, 2023 
 

To renew your contract and maintain continuous service, please choose the option that best meets your needs, sign and 
return the Renewal Agreement by e‐mail to:  Sara.Bolchi@vsp.com or fax to: 916‐463‐3928 by May 1, 2021. VSP will 
produce your renewal contract when we have received the Signed Renewal Agreement. Please review the new contract 
carefully, since some of the provisions may have changed from your prior contract.  Additionally, please keep a copy of 
this Renewal Agreement and accompanying letter, given that they serve as your Notice of Renewal. 

 

By:   
 

Title:_   
 

Date:   
 



  Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
 
 
 
Prepared By:  Debbie Crozier/Human Resources  
Committee:    Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:   April 15, 2021 
Resolution Title:  Resolution Authorizing the Implementation of a Voluntary/Supplemental Health 
Benefit   
Board Meeting Date:   April 22, 2021  
 
 
Budget Information: 
  

Was item budgeted?   N/A                         Appropriation Amount:                                         

If not, explain funding source:  Winnebago County will pay 15% of the paid claim amount vs the 
current 80% or 100% amount paid (after the deductible has been satisfied).     
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A                   Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information:    This is a new voluntary/supplement benefit that will be offered to 
employees.  Zero Card was founded in 2016.   Zero Card is a voluntary/supplemental health benefit that 
contracts with free-standing facilities to negotiate lower costs based on “bundled” services.  This means 
one “bill” for surgical procedures instead of 4 or 5 bills from the facility, provider, lab, etc.  The County will 
pay a lower overall cost for the service and the member pays $0 out-of-pocket for the procedure.  This is 
completely voluntary and up to the member if they want to utilize the facility and/or provider. The County 
will be charged only when the benefit is utilized.   
  
Recommendation:   The Operations and Administrative Committee, chaired by Keith McDonald, has 
reviewed the resolution presented to the Board and recommends its approval.   

Contract/Agreement:   June 1, 2021 with a 60 day termination.  
 
Legal Review:  Reviewed with the States Attorney’s office. 
 
Follow-Up:   If approved, this would be effective June 1, 2021. 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  April 22, 2021  
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2021 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT WITH ZERO CARD                               
FOR A VOLUNTARY/SUPPLEMENTAL HEALTH BENEFIT 

  
 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, will offer to its employees the option of 

participating in a voluntary/supplemental health benefit; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County’s Benefit Consultant has reviewed the proposal for Zero Card, the 
voluntary/supplemental health benefit; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County’s Benefit Consultant recommends implementation of the 

voluntary/supplemental health benefit; and,   
 
 WHEREAS, Zero Card has proposed the following rates to Winnebago County effective       
June 1, 2021: 

Employee:  $0.00 
Employer:  15% of paid claims 

 
 WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed agreement and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with Zero Card for the administration of the 
voluntary/supplemental health benefit effective June 1, 2021 with a 60 day termination if necessary.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
with Zero Card, 1325 E. 15th Street, Suite 202, Tulsa, OK 74120 for administration of the 
voluntary/supplemental health benefit. 
   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources and 
the County Auditor. 
 
 
 
    Respectfully Submitted, 

OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 



AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD  
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIMIE SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



  Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
 
 
 
Prepared By:  Debbie Crozier/Human Resources  
Committee:    Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:   April 15, 2021 
Resolution Title:  Resolution Authorizing the Implementation of a Voluntary Identity Guard Plan 
Board Meeting Date:   April 22, 2021  
 
 
Budget Information: 
  

Was item budgeted?   N/A                         Appropriation Amount:                                         

If not, explain funding source:  This is a 100% employee paid benefit,     
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A                   Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information:    This is a new voluntary benefit that will be offered to employees.  Aura 
Benefits Program offers a voluntary identity guard product that protects personal devices, identity, privacy 
and data.     
  
Recommendation:   The Operations and Administrative Committee, chaired by Keith McDonald, has 
reviewed the resolution presented to the Board and recommends its approval.    

Contract/Agreement:   June 1, 2021 through June 1, 2024  
 
Legal Review:  Reviewed with the States Attorney’s office. 
 
Follow-Up:   If approved, this would be effective June 1, 2021. 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  April 22, 2021  
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2021 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT WITH AURA BENEFITS PROGRAM 
FOR A VOLUNTARY IDENTITY GUARD PLAN   

  
 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, will offer to its employees the option of 

participating in a voluntary identity guard benefit; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County’s Benefit Consultant has reviewed the proposal for Aura Benefits 
Program, the voluntary identity guard benefit; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County’s Benefit Consultant recommends implementation of the voluntary 

identity guard benefit; and,   
 
 WHEREAS, Aura Benefits Program has proposed the following rates to Winnebago County 
effective June 1, 2021: 

Employee:  $10.75/month 
   Family:  $19.85/month  

 
 WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed agreement and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with Aura Benefits Program for the administration of the 
voluntary identity guard benefit effective June 1, 2021 through May 31, 2024.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
with Aura Benefits Program, 2553 Dulles View Drive, Suite 400, Herndon, VA 20171 for 
administration of the voluntary identity guard benefit. 
   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources and 
the County Auditor. 
 
 
 
    Respectfully Submitted, 

OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 



AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD  
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIMIE SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Your Employees 
Protect Your
Future

Protect theirs with end-to-end 
Cyber Wellness solutions

lklein
Stamp



WE’RE REVOLUTIONIZING CYBERSECURITY BENEFITS.
Cybercrime keeps evolving. It’s time that Identity Theft Protection Benefits do, too.

FOR EMPLOYERSFOR EMPLOYEES

From the e-commerce boom to remote working 
trends to the emergence of data brokering, the past 
five years have brought significant changes to how 
our information exists online. And – unfortunately – 
as our lives grow increasingly digital, the cyber risks 
we face escalate alongside them. Cybercriminals 
continue to find new, more sophisticated ways to 
exploit the abundance of information; employers  
and employees alike must stay more diligent than 
ever before to ensure their information online is safe 
and protected.

Access to identity theft, device security, and 
data privacy tools in one platform.

Enhanced protection for employees may 
reduce the likelihood of data breaches and 
other cyberattacks.

Cost-effective package available at 1/3 of 
the price of comparable individual solutions 
in the market.

Access to Cyber Wellness tools increases 
employees’ investment in their employer’s 
overall cybersecurity*.

Around-the-clock remediation support that 
can reduce the stress, financial impact, and 
resolution time of cybertheft.

Potential reduction in the costs associated 
with identity theft and other cybercrimes.

So, why is it that we still offer employees the 
same kind of identity theft benefits that we did a 
decade ago, when the digital world has evolved so 
widely and rapidly?

It’s time for disruption. And Aura Identity Guard is 
leading the charge by introducing the first-and-only 
fully integrated platform that empowers employees 
to address top-to-bottom cybersecurity needs, the 
Digital Halo.  

THE AURA® IDENTITY GUARD™ DIGITAL HALO BENEFITS AT A GLANCE:

*See Appendix 1.



DATA BREACHES: THE IMPACT ON AN ORGANIZATION
A new era of technology has ushered in a massive proliferation of data 
that has redefined our personal, social, and financial identities. This hyper-
connectivity between the ways we shop, share, bank, work, and interact is 
rife with opportunity and risk. New cybercrimes and new ways to commit 
these crimes have emerged, with the global cost of cybercrime estimated to 
reach $6 trillion by 2021.1

1Cybersecurity Ventures. “Official 2017 Annual Cybersecurity Report.” October 2017.
2PCI Pal. “Lack of Trust Comes with a High Price Tag for U.S. Businesses.” October 2018.
3Identity Theft Resource Center. “2019 End of Year Data Breach Report.” January 2020.
4Global Workplace Analytics. “Work At-Home After COVID-19.” April 2020.

17%
increase in data breaches 
2018 – 2019.3

Both types of exposures put 
businesses at risk. And much 
of the exposure is a result of 
poor Cyber Wellness on the 
part of employees; e.g., lost 
or stolen laptops, repeatedly 
using common passwords, 
using unprotected WiFi, etc. 

DIRECT: $8M is the average cost of a single breach to a 
US business.2

INDIRECT: 12.5-25 work days is the average lost for an 
employee to resolve identity theft.3

*See appendix 2 to calculate your averages.

CYBERTHEFT IS COSTING YOUR BUSINESS MONEY
Cyber crimes can have drastic implications for businesses and their 
employees. The impact can be felt both directly and indirectly:

THE DOMINO EFFECT FOR BUSINESSES
Identity theft impacts employees at home and at work. While they are 
preoccupied trying to sort out the impact on their finances, credit ratings, 
and cash flow, work productivity suffers and other employees must pick 
up the slack.4

THE RISKS OF THE DIGITAL AGE



Cyber Wellness is proactive, holistic cyber protection –  
including ID theft, safe browsing, data privacy, and VPN  
tools – that empowers individuals with the knowledge and 
tools necessary to take swift action against cyberthreats 
to keep themselves and their families protected financially, 
physically, and digitally. In addition to traditional ID theft  
protection, Cyber Wellness includes:

1The New York Times. “Intel Executive: Rein in Data Brokers.” July 15, 2019. 
2MarketWatch. “Will Americans pay companies to keep their data private? Here’s their answer.” January 19, 2019.
3Identity Theft Resource Center. “2019 End of Year Data Breach Report.” January 2020.
4Emsisoft. “The State of Ransomware in the US: Report and Statistics 2019.” December 2019.
5AV-TEST Institute. Retrieved from https://www.av-test.org/en/statistics/malware/ on 12/18/19.
6SonicWall. “2020 SonicWall Cyber Threat Report. February 2020.
7Symantec. “2019 Internet Security Threat Report.” March 2019.

48%
Percentage of malicious 
email attachments sent as 
Office 365 files.7

Much of the exposure is a 
result of poor Cyber Wellness 
on the part of employees3; 
e.g., lost or stolen laptops,
repeatedly using common
passwords, using unprotected
WiFi, etc.

$200B annual economic activity.1

$7.5B Estimated cost of ransomware attacks in the U.S. in 2019.4

80% of consumers want online services to collect 
less of their data.2

350K Average number of new malicious programs and 
unwanted apps released each day.5

9.9B Number of malware attacks that occured in 2019.6

DATA PRIVACY
Organizations across nearly every industry — from online retailers to social 
media networks to big box gyms — buy, sell, and trade account holders’ 
information. This results in unwanted junk mail/solicitations, robocalls and 
robotexts, and — most importantly — personal data in the hands of people 
who aren’t authorized to have it. 

DEVICE SECURITY
By targeting employees through things like phishing, ransomware, 
malware, and DDOS attacks, hackers are able to infiltrate an 
organization’s systems to catastrophic results.3

ABOUT CYBER WELLNESS



ONE-STOP-SHOP FOR CYBER WELLNESS
Aura’s integrated platform provides a Digital Halo of security to monitor, 
manage, and help protect personal information. This easy, cost-effective 
approach empowers employees with a robust suite of tools to meet the 
diverse needs of their digital lives.*  

Using adaptive and innovative technology — including IBM® Watson™ AI — 
enables us to quickly evolve our solution to ensure that we’re always providing 
the most comprehensive cyber protection available in today’s market. 

Aura Identity Guard empowers people with the tools, knowl-
edge, and services that help them use their technology and 
devices freely and with peace of mind.

7 YEARS
Average tenure of our customer 
service representativess 

INDUSTRY 
LEADER IN
Net Promoter Score (NPS)

50,000,000
Protected nearly

satisfied customers

24 YEARS
experience in identity protection

150,000
Resolved

identity fraud cases

EXPERIENCE AND 
PROVEN LEADERSHIP

Privacy Identity

Security

*See Appendix 3 to learn more about the Cyber Wellness platform.

MEET AURA IDENTITY GUARD



IDENTITY GUARD IDENTITY SECURE
• Industry-leading alert speeds and breadth1 help employees stop fraud 

and other forms of identity theft before it spirals out of control.

• Personalized threat alerts and risk management tools empower 
employees to better mitigate risks and optimize cybersecurity through 
tailored information, best practices, and alerts.

• Unparalleled family protection includes intuitive cyberbullying 
capabilities that evaluate posts for harmful and aggressive language, 
and other social media monitoring tools to ensure that kids have safe 
online experiences.

IDENTITY GUARD DEVICE SECURE
• Safe browsing tools provide around-the-clock protection from 

malware, ransomware, spyware, and viruses to reduce the ability for 
criminals to gain access to personal data and files that can be used for 
online attacks and fraud schemes.

• Around-the-clock, fortress-like protection that’s always on alert, 
whether an employee is actively using a machine at work or sleeping 
with all devices on mute.

• VPN provides employees with a secure connection to the internet, 
reducing the risk their devices, browsing, and personal info can be 
accessed online.

IDENTITY GUARD PRIVACY SECURE
• Personal data sharing alerts empower employees to reduce – and in 

some places completely stop – unauthorized use of their personal data 
and information. 

• Information removal from data broker lists and people locator  
sites results in a measurable reduction in the number of unsolicited, 
pre-approved credit offers and can reduce an employee’s risk of 
identity fraud. 

• Reduces unwanted e-mail solicitations, texts, and spam.

comprehensive, integrated 
Cyber Wellness suite on the 
market, the Aura Identity 
Guard Digital Halo includes 
identity theft security, data 
privacy tools, VPN, and 
device intrusion protection 
under one roof – for the 
most innovative, robust, 
user friendly cybersecurity 
experience available today.

THE 1ST 
& ONLY

Industry-leading 
alert speeds1

Personalized 
threat alerts

Cyberbullying alerts and 
social media monitoring

Safe 
browsing tools

Secure VPN 
connection

Removes 
personal data

Reduces spam 
+ robocalls

Helps stop 
unauthorized data use

1Ath Power Consulting. Independent Research. February 2018

THE AURA IDENTITY GUARD DIGITAL HALO



PLAN COMPARISONS

*Identity Theft Insurance underwritten by insurance company subsidiaries or affiliates of American International Group‚ Inc. The description herein is 
a summary and intended for informational purposes only and does not include all terms‚ conditions and exclusions of the policies described. Please 
refer to the actual policies for terms‚ conditions‚ and exclusions of coverage. Coverage may not be available in all jurisdictions.
**Ath Power Consulting. Independent Study. February 2018.

Robo-call/robo-text protection
Device/cookie tracking protection
E-mail solicitation/junk mail prevention
Data broker list monitoring/removal

TOTAL ULTIMATE
Identity Secure

Device Secure

Near Real-Time Alerts
Auto-On Monitoring
Credit and debit card monitoring
Bank account transaction monitoring
401(k) investment account monitoring
Student loan activity alerts
High Risk Transaction Monitoring
Bank Account Opening & Takeover Monitoring
Address Monitoring
Criminal Record Monitoring
Fictious Identity  Monitoring 
Home Title Monitoring
Sex Offender Monitoring
Dark Web Monitoring
Human-sourced intelligence
Compromised credentials
Stolen fund reimbursement
401(k) and HSA reimbursement
$1,000,000 Identity Theft Insurance*
Security Freeze Assistance
Threat Alerts
Risk Management Score
Social Insight Report
Lost Wallet Protection
1-Bureau Credit Monitoring
3-Bureau Credit Monitoring
3-Bureau Annual Credit Report
Monthly Credit Score
Credit Score Tracker

Safe Browsing Software
Anti-virus
VPN
Anti-adware

Privacy Secure



Monthly Employee-Paid Pricing

Monthly Employer-Paid Pricing

Voluntary
Plan Individual Family

Total $7.10 $12.50

Ultimate $10.75 $19.85

Individuals* Total - 
1 Bureau Ultimate

1185 $3.25 $6.20

Employee paid family buyups provided when plan is selected

TRACK HISTORY YOU CAN TRUST 
We have never had a breach in our 24-year history.

EASE OF DOING BUSINESS 
We have a 98% customer satisfaction rating and  
have worked with some of the biggest companies 
in the world.

SEAMLESS INTEGRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION
Our account management teams are adept at handling 
integrations with myriad platforms and payroll systems 
for a smooth user experience.

SUCCESSFUL ONBOARDING
Once enrolled, employees receive a personalized 
welcome email that provides instructions on  
setting up their log-in credentials to access their 
personalized dashboard. 

PERSONALIZED DASHBOARD 
The personalized dashboard enables employees to 
interact with the Identity Guard benefit, view any 
alerts specific to them, and add family members for 
identity theft monitoring (if they have elected for the 
family plan).

ONGOING INFORMATIVE COMMUNICATIONS 
Once enrolled, employees have access to a variety of 
continuing education resources and receive monthly 
summary communications. 

AROUND THE CLOCK CUSTOMER SUPPORT AND 
REMEDIATION SERVICES
A US-based team of identity protection experts is 
available 24/7 to answer technology-related questions 
and walk victimized employees through the identity 
recovery process.

Successful partnering: Working with you to 
protect your employees and your business.

PARTNER WITH US





 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

Purchasing Department | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4386 |  Email: purchasing@wincoil.us      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
Prepared By:   Purchasing on behalf of the Board Office 

Committee:   Operations & Administrative Committee 

Committee Date:    April 15, 2021 

Resolution Title:  Resolution for Approval of the Winnebago County Board Chairman 
Proposed Vehicle Use 

Board Meeting Date:  April 22, 2021 

Background Information:  
The County Board has historically provided a vehicle as part of the compensation package for 
the Board Chairman position. As part of the process of establishing the compensation for the 
2020-2024 Board Chairman term, the Board voted to remove any personal vehicle use as part 
of the overall compensation package. 
 

The Chairman and a Board member recently requested advice from the County Auditor in 
regards to reconciling the substantial travel needs required in fulfilling the duties of the 
Chairman (Sec. 2-49. – Duties.) with the County vehicle policy (Sec. 62-28. – Vehicle policy.) 
 

See Executive Summary - Exhibit A, March 18, 2021 County Auditor’s Memo for more 
information. 
 

Recommendation: 
The County currently has several unused car pool vehicles in the Concourse parking garage. The 
Auditor’s recommendation is that the Board consider assigning one of these vehicles to the 
Chairman, which can be used only for business purposes and for commuting to and from work.   
 

However, as a result of the restrictions regarding the ability to adjust an Elected Official's 
compensation mid-term, the Chairman will be required to reimburse the County for the 
commuting miles to and from work at the IRS standard mileage rate.  
 
Legal Review:  Review completed by Lafakeria Vaughn.  She prepared the Board Resolution. 
 
County Auditor’s Review:  In addition to attached Exhibit A, the County Auditor’s Office reviewed 
the Board Resolution and recommends the following: 
 

In order to adhere to Article VII, Section 9(b) of the Illinois Constitution and not affect the 
Chairman’s compensation, a payroll deduction will be created by the County, which charges the 
Chairman for use of the car pool vehicle for commuting to and from work at the IRS standard 
mileage rate.   
 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored By: Keith McDonald                                              County Board Meeting April 22, 2021 
 

 
RESOLUTION  

OF THE 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2021 CR  

 
SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
 

RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL OF WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN 
PROPOSED VEHICLE USE 

 
WHEREAS, the Local Government Officers Compensation Act, 50 ILCS 145/2 requires that the 
compensation of elected officers of units of local government, including county officers, shall be 
fixed at least 180 days before the beginning of their terms; and  
 
WHEREAS, Article VII, section 9(b) of the Illinois Constitution provides that “an increase or 
decrease in the salary of an elected officer of any unit of local government shall not take effect 
during the term for which that officer is elected; and  
 
WHEREAS, on May 28, 2020, the Winnebago County Board adopted a resolution (2020 CR 
079) affixing compensation and other benefits for certain elected county officials, including the 
Winnebago County Board Chairman for the 2020-2024 term; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the resolution, the Winnebago County Board changed the new County 
Board Chairman’s compensation to remove the assigned vehicle for his four-year term; and  
 
WHEREAS, upon consideration of the County Board Chairman position and associated duties, 
as provided in Section 2-49 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances, it requires substantial 
travel needs; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Vehicle Policy (Vehicle Policy) provides in part that the 
“authorized use of county owned vehicles by employees is for bona-fide county business 
purposes and only when in the best interest of conducting county business”; and 
 
WHEREAS, given the needs of the County Board Chairman’s position, and in accordance with 
the Vehicle Policy, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, recommends that the County Board Chairman be assigned one of 
the County car pool vehicles to be used only for bona-fide county business purposes and for 
commuting to and from work only; and  
 
WHEREAS, in order to adhere to Article VII, Section 9(b) of the Illinois Constitution and not 
affect the Chairman’s compensation, a payroll deduction will be created which charges the 
County Board Chairman for use of the car pool vehicle for commuting to and from work at the 



IRS standard mileage rate and further that the proceeds from the deduction will be deposited into 
the car pool internal service fund to offset the associated costs of operating the vehicle; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois has determined that 
assigning a County car pool vehicle to the Winnebago County Board Chairman for bona-fide 
county business purposes and specifically to perform his duties as prescribed by ordinance is in 
the best interest of conducting county business.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that it hereby approves the assignment of a County car pool vehicle to the Winnebago 
County Board Chairman during his 2020-2024 term of office which can only be used in 
accordance with the Winnebago County Vehicle Policy.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Administrator, the 
County Auditor, and the Chief Financial Officer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



        Respectfully submitted, 
        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
_________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Keith McDonald, Chairman         Keith McDonald, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________         ___________________________________ 
John Butitta, Vice Chairman          John Butitta, Vice Chairman 
 
_________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby              Jean Crosby 
 
_________________________________         ____________________________________ 
Paul Arena              Paul Arena  
 
________________________________    ____________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman                   Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________    _____________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd        Dorothy Redd 
 
__________________________________       _____________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado                   Jaime Salgado 
 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of _________________, 2021. 
 
 
 
                      _______________________________________  
                                                                                                     Joseph Chiarelli 

          Chairman of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 



It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

County Administration Building 
404 Elm Street, Room 201 

Rockford, Illinois 61101 

WILLIAM D. CROWLEY 

County Auditor 
Phone (815) 319-4206 
 bcrowley@wincoil.us 

Off ice  of  the County Auditor  

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 

March 18, 2021 

To:  Winnebago County Board 

From:  William D. Crowley, Winnebago County Auditor 

Re:   County Board Chairman Proposed Vehicle Use 

The Winnebago County Board has historically provided a vehicle as part of the compensation package for the Winnebago 
County Board Chairman position.  As part of the process of establishing the compensation for the 2020-2024 County Board 
Chairman term, the Winnebago County Board voted to remove any personal vehicle use as part of the overall compensation 
package. 

The Winnebago County Chairman and a Winnebago County Board member have recently requested the advice of my office in 
regards to reconciling the substantial travel needs required in fulfilling the duties of the County Board Chairman (Sec. 2-49. – 
Duties.) with the Winnebago County vehicle policy (Sec. 62-28. – Vehicle policy.)  

Duties of the County Board Chairman 

The duties of the County Board Chairman are prescribed by ordinance. Several of these duties previously established by 
ordinance (indicated below) would potential require significant travel.   

• Represent the county on all economic development opportunities

• Shall represent the county at all organizations of which the county is a member

• Develop and promote the county’s legislative agenda

• Load communication of County initiatives and accomplishments

The nature of the County Board Chairman position is that he/she is the Chairman 365 days a year and 24 hours a day.  It is 
very likely that in a post-COVID world, these duties will routinely require travel during and after regular business hours and on 
weekends which has historically been the case.     

Winnebago County Vehicle Policy 

Considering the overall nature of the Winnebago County Board Chairman position and the associated duties, a reasonable 
argument could be made that from a practical standpoint the Chairman should have a county vehicle available to him/her at 
all times.  This would require the Chairman to drive a County owned vehicle to and from work on a daily basis.  The County 
Vehicle Policy provides several areas of guidance on this issue as follows: 

• It is in the county’s best interest to minimize commuting expenses by only assigning vehicles to individuals when it is
the cheapest option, as when annual business miles are at least 70 percent of the vehicles total annual miles.

Executive Summary - Exhibit A



 

 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

County Administration Building 
404 Elm Street, Room 201 

Rockford, Illinois 61101 

WILLIAM D. CROWLEY 

County Auditor 
Phone (815) 319-4206 
 bcrowley@wincoil.us 

 

Off ice  of  the County Auditor  

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 

• Authorized use of county owned vehicles by employees is for bona-fide county business purposes and only when in 
the best interest of conducting county business.  Personal use of county vehicles is strictly prohibited, other than 
commuting to and from work, and de minimis usage while performing official business. 
 

• Department heads and elected officials will be responsible for recommending which vehicles under their department’s 
control may be driven home on a regular basis.  This recommendation must be presented to the chairman of the 
county board for his/her written approval and then approved by the county board prior to the start of every new 
fiscal year.   

 
State of Illinois Constitution 
 
As previously indicated, the Winnebago County Board voted to remove any vehicle use as part of the overall compensation 
package for the 2020-2024 County Board Chairman term.  If the current County Board Chairman were to use a County owned 
vehicle to commute to and from work, the commuting miles would be a taxable item and would effectively increase the overall 
compensation of the County Board Chairman position.   
 
The Illinois Constitution states “An increase or decrease in the salary of an elected officer of any unit of local government shall 
not take effect during the term for which that officer is elected.”   
 
Unfortunately, if a decision were made to simply provide the Winnebago County Board Chairman with a vehicle to commute 
to and from work the board would be unable to do so without potentially violating the State of Illinois Constitution.    
 

Recommendation 
 
My understanding is that the County currently has several unused car pool vehicles that sit in the concourse parking 
garage.  My recommendation is that the Winnebago County Board consider assigning one of these vehicles to the County 
Board Chairman which can be used only for business purposes and for commuting to and from work.   
 
To address the issue of restrictions on adjustments to the Chairman’s compensation we recommend that a payroll 
deduction be created which charges the County Board Chairman for the commuting to and from work at the same rate 
that the commuting charges would ordinarily be taxable by the IRS.  If this process is implemented, the proceeds from 
this deduction should be directed to the car pool internal service fund.   
 
As described in the County Vehicle Policy, we would recommend that if the decision were made to assign the County 
Board Chairman a vehicle, the County Board should consider doing so by approving a resolution.     
 
 
Cc:  Joseph Chiarelli, Winnebago County Board Chairman 
        Joseph Hanley, Winnebago County State’s Attorney 
 Patrick Thompson, Winnebago County Administrator 
 David Rickert, Chief Financial Officer 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

Purchasing Department | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4386 |  Email: purchasing@wincoil.us      

           ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
Prepared By:   Purchasing Department on behalf DoIT 

Committee:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

Committee Date:    April 15, 2021 

Resolution Title:  Resolution to Approve Telecommunication Service Contract  

 Meeting Date: April 22, 2021 

Budget Information: 
  

Was item budgeted?   YES                       Appropriation Amount:   $36,693.35 annually  

If not, explain funding source:   

ORG/OBJ/Project Code  19500-43168     Budget Impact:  Nominally less than 2019 rate 

 
Background Information:  
The County of Winnebago operates an expansive Mitel Voice Over IP Phone System for all Elected 
and Appointed Officials.  There are approximately 1,600 phones in the system that are managed 
by sophisticated telecommunications electronics (programmable controllers).  The County has 
been operating this phone system since 2005.   
 

Proper maintenance and support of the Mitel Voice Over IP Phone System is critical for daily 
operations of the various Elected and Appointed Officials’ offices. 
 

This year we used the Sourcewell/NJPA #022719-MBS Cooperative Joint Purchasing Contract to 
obtain the lowest contracted maintenance service rates.   The service agreement, however, will 
be managed through local vendor, IP Communications, Inc. 
 

Recommendation: 
The County of Winnebago requires annual maintenance and support of the Mitel Voice Over IP 
System to ensure reliability, stability and predictability of the system. DoIT recommends 
awarding this competitively priced three (3) year service agreement with IP Communications 
since there will be no cost increase. 
 

Follow-Up: 
Purchasing Department will route for signatures the IP Communications, Inc. Winnebago County 
three (3) year Full Service Contract Agreement (Resolution Exhibit A).  The DoIT will issue a 
Purchase Order to IPC.  Fully Executed Vendor Agreement will be filed with executed Resolution 
in the Clerk’s Office. 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  4/22/2021 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2021 CR 
 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICE CONTRACT 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago operates an expansive Voice Over IP (VOIP) 

system that supports all Elected and Appointed officials. The system is formally known as 
the Mitel Voice Over IP Phone System; and 
 

WHEREAS, since activation in 2005, the Winnebago County Department of 
Information Technology has upheld an annual maintenance and support contract to cover 
the hardware and software of the MiteI system; a n d  
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
 (g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and 

 
WHEREAS, local supplier, IPC Communications Inc., is under the National Joint Power 

Alliance Cooperative Joint Purchasing  Agreement NJPA Sourcewell Contract #022719-MBS 
with the lowest contracted annual maintenance rates available; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for 
the County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the NJPA Sourcewell quote, Resolution 
Exhibit A, received for the aforementioned service and recommends awarding the Contract 
as follows: 
 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE CONTRACT  
 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee has determined that the 
funding for the aforementioned purchase shall be paid as follows: 
 

19500 - 43168 
 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the County shall enter into a three (3) year service contract with IP 
Communications, Inc., 1521 Windsor Road, Rockford, IL  61111, for an annual amount of 
$39,693.36 per year. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chief Information Officer, 
Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office and County Auditor. 

 
                    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                    Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD  
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIMIE SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



County of Winnebago Date 03/22/2021

400 W State St Mitel 

Rockford IL 61101 Sourcewell/NJPA Number 022719-MBS 

IPC Tracking Number 5589295

Mitel NJPA  Government Pricing

Winnebago County 3 year Full Service Contract

Part Number Description Quantity Coverage Start Coverage End

54007864 SWA Std 3y MiVBus Analog Port 12 $6.62 $79.44

54007872 SWA Std 3y MiVBus System 1 $208.09 $208.09

54007873 SWA Std 3y MiVBus User 13 $18.29 $237.77

54008271 SWA Std 3y MiCollab Cl DeskPh 6 $18.60 $111.60

54008272 SWA Std 3y MiCollab Cl SoftPh 6 $13.56 $81.36

54008281 SWA Std 3y MiCollabClient Sys 1 $211.24 $211.24

54007872 SWA Std 3y MiVBus System 1 $208.09 $208.09

54007873 SWA Std 3y MiVBus User 1 $18.29 $18.29

54006933 CC Standard Software Assurance 894 $0.63 $563.22

54007872 SWA Std 3y MiVBus System 1 $208.09 $208.09

54007973 SWA Std 3y MiV BG System 1 $41.93 $41.93

Page 1 of 3

SYSID: 10244812 County Justice Center (CJC) (MiVoice Business)

SYSID: 1185486 UCA Server (MiCollab Client)

SYSID: 12418517 County Admin (MiVoice Business)

SYSID: 15645766 31758_Winnebago County Courthouse (MiContact Center)

SYSID: 1954043 Forest Preserve (MiVoice Business)

SYSID: 24209451 WCHD - MBG Server (MiVoice Border Gateway)

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



Part Number Description Quantity Coverage Start Coverage End

54008362 SWA Std 2y UCC Entry MiVB 1602 $15.47 $24,782.94

54007872 SWA Std 3y MiVBus System 1 $208.09 $208.09

54007872 SWA Std 3y MiVBus System 1 $208.09 $208.09

54008262 SWA Std 2y MiCollab System 1 $144.64 $144.64

54008265 SWA Std 2y MiCollab UM Mailbox 1700 $5.03 $8,551.00

54006933 CC Standard Software Assurance 9027 $0.63 $5,687.01

54007872 SWA Std 3y MiVBus System 1 $208.09 $208.09

54007872 SWA Std 3y MiVBus System 1 $208.09 $208.09

54007872 SWA Std 3y MiVBus System 1 $208.09 $208.09

54007864 SWA Std 3y MiVBus Analog Port 35 $6.62 $231.70

54007872 SWA Std 3y MiVBus System 1 $208.09 $208.09

54007873 SWA Std 3y MiVBus User 83 $18.29 $1,518.07

54007857 SWA Std 2y MiVBus DLM 1 $0.00 $0.00

54007872 SWA Std 3y MiVBus System 1 $208.09 $208.09

54007872 SWA Std 3y MiVBus System 1 $208.09 $208.09

54007872 SWA Std 3y MiVBus System 1 $208.09 $208.09

54007873 SWA Std 3y MiVBus User 24 $18.29 $438.96

54007872 SWA Std 3y MiVBus System 1 $208.09 $208.09

Page 2 of 3

SYSID: 3445945 31199_Winnebago County (MiContact Center)

SYSID: 51249624 Carrie Lynn (MiVoice Business)

SYSID: 34112549 NEW MAS (MiCollab)

SYSID: 30830652 Highway Department (MiVoice Business)

SYSID: 28349658 ULM - Winnebago County (Mitel Unified Collaboration and 

Communications)

SYSID: 29106383 Juvenile Detention Center (MiVoice Business)

SYSID: 64599329 WCHD - Cx Controller (MiVoice Business)

SYSID: 68985248 DLM Winnebago County (Mitel Designated License Manager)

SYSID: 70051134 Animal Services (MiVoice Business)

SYSID: 74732177 WCHD - Mx Controller (MiVoice Business)

SYSID: 74986486 vMCD Master (MiVoice Business)

SYSID: 77574401 Court House (MiVoice Business)

SYSID: 66106147 RIC Center (MiVoice Business)

SYSID: 66929162 River Bluff 3300 (MiVoice Business)



Part Number Description Quantity Coverage Start Coverage End

54008274 SWA Std 3y MiCollab System 1 $167.10 $167.10

54008277 SWA Std 3y MiCollab UM Mailbox 100 $5.90 $590.00

54007971 SWA Std 3y MiV BG SIP Connect 27 $10.48 $282.96

54007973 SWA Std 3y MiV BG System 1 $43.58 $43.58

54007974 SWA Std 3y MiV BG Telewk User 6 $20.97 $125.82

54010803 SWA Reenl MiV BG System 1 $11.14 $11.14

54010804 SWA Reenl MiV BG SIP Connect 27 $2.68 $72.36

54010806 SWA Reenl MiV BG Telewk User 6 $5.46 $32.76

54054478 Hardware and Labor support and replacement 

for all VOIP related equipment, Including 24/7 

Emergency Response  

1 $72,350.00 $72,350.00

$119,080.06

Coverage Start Coverage End

4/30/21   4/30/24

Three Year Warranty all Hardware, Software and  Labor

Terms: $39,693.35 Due 4/30/2021, $39,693.35 Due 4/30/2022 and The Remaining Balance $39,693.36 Due 4/30/23

Customer:                                                                           Approved and Accepted by:IP Communications

Authorized                                                                                                  Authorized

Signature:                                             Date:                      Signature:                                                                    

Print Name

and Title:                                     

Page 3 of 3

SYSID: 8126769 River Bluff MAS (MiCollab)

SYSID: 87468238 vMBG (MiVoice Border Gateway)



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 



























































































 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: April 22, 2021 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2, and Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2 – Issuance 

of Amendments Nos. 221, 221, 224, and 224, Regarding Technical Specifications 
3.8.1, “AC Sources-Operating” (EPID L-2020-LLA-0141) 

 
b. Federal Register / Vol. 86, No. 64 / Tuesday, April 6, 2021 / Notices 

 

c. Exelon Generation Company, LLC – Request for Withholding Information from 
Public Disclosure (EPID L-2021-LLM-0000) 

 

d. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2; Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2; Calvert Cliffs 
Nuclear Power Plant, Units 1 and 2; Clinton Power Station , Unit No. 1; Dresden 
Nuclear Power Station, Units 2 and 3 ; James A. Fitzpatrick Nuclear Power Plant; 
LaSalle County Station, Units 1 and 2; Limerick Generating Station, Units 1 and 2; 
Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station, Units 1 and 2; Peach Bottom Atomic Power 
Station, Units 2 and 3; Quad Cities Nuclear Power Station, Units 1 and 2; and R.E. 
Ginna Nuclear Power Plant – Withdrawal of Requested Exemption from Certain 
Requirements in 10 CFR 50.55a (EPIDS L-2021-LLE-004, -0015, and -0016) 

 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, 
Inc. a Certificate of Liability Insurance for Miller Engineering Company.   

 
3. County Clerk Gummow received the Monthly Report for March, 2021 from the 

Winnebago County Recorder’s Office.  
 

4. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago 
County Treasurer the Investment Report as of April, 2021. 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Dorothy Redd
	Brett Hruby
	Al Bach Sr.
	Don Carlson
	Jay Dowthard
	Pamela Cunningham
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Ordinance Providing for the Creation of a Capital Improvement Plan Budget
	Resolution Supporting SB1721
	Resolution Opposing SB2278
	Zoning Committee
	Resolution Calling for Governor & General Assembly to Protect Land Control of Zoning & Land Use
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution & RDA for Project Sawgrass
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Renewal Agreement with VSP for Voluntary Vision Insurance
	Res. Authorizing Execution of Agrmt w/Zero Card for Vouluntary Supplemental Health Benefit
	Res. Authorizing Execution of Agrmt w/Aura Benefits Program for Voluntary Identity Guard Plan
	Resolution for Approval of Winn. Cty. Board Chairman Proposed Vehicle Use
	Resolution to Approve Telecommunication Service Contract
	Public Works Committee
	(21-008) Resolution Authorizing Award of Bid for Expansion Joint Repair 
	(21-009) Resolution Authorizing Execution of Local Public Agency Agreement w/Willett Hofmann & Assoc.
	(21-010) Resolution Rescinding Resolution #21-005
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



